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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

MNotce is hernoby ghen that the Thileth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Lakshmi
Sundaram Hall, 15-A Golkhade Road, Madural 525 002, on Weanesday, the 25th day of Seplember, 2013 at
10.30 A M. to transact Tho lolioesng business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To consider and il thought fiL 1o pass with of without modification, the following rescluton &8 an
ordinary rescluion:

RESOLVED THAT tha audited Balance Sheel as al 313t Masch, 2013 and tha Statamant of Profit and
Loss for the year endoed on thal date, togother with the Directors’ Report and the Auditors’ Report
thereon as presented fo the meeteng be and tha same are heraby approved and adopted.

To declare drvidend lor the year ended March 31, 2013

RESOLVED THAT a dividend of Rs.7.50 per share (T5%) for the year ended 31.3.2013 on 76.57,050
equity shares ol the Company be and is hereby declared for payment 1o the sharsholders of the
Company whose namas appaar in the Register of Membars as at the close of business on 25.9.2013.

To consider and # thougiht i, 1o pass with.or without modification, the following resolution as an ondinany
resolution;

RESOLVED THAT Me. H Janardana lyer, Dwector, who retires by rotation and being eligibsle offers himsatf
for re-appoiniment. be and ia heraby re-appointad as & Director of the Company.

Ta conaider and i thought fil, 1o pass with of without modification, tha lollowing resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

RESOLVED THAT Mr. 5 Narayanan, Director, who mfires Dy rotabion and besng allgible offera himsaif for
re-appointmand, baand is haraby re-appointed as a Director of tha Company

To consider and, I thougit fit, 10 pass. with or without modification, the following resolution as an
orginary resoluton:

RESOLVED THAT the relinng statulory auditors Ms Sundaram & Srinsvasan. Chartersd Accountants,
Madurai, having Firm Registration No. 0042075 msued by The Institute of Chanered Accountants of
Ingia, be and ard harelyy ré-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company 10 hold office from the
conciusion of this Annual General Meeting Bl the conclusion of the next Annual Genaral Meating of the
Company on such romunesation as may be fixed in this behall by the Board of Directors of the Company

SPECIAL BUSINESS
6. Toconsider and if thought i, lo pass with or without modification, the lollowing resclution as an ordinary

resolution,

RESOLVED THAT pursuant 1o tha applicable provisions of the Companiea Act, 1858, and subject 1o such
approvals and consents as may be necessary, the approval of the Company ba and s hereby accorded
to the payment of remuneration by way of commission on an annual basis o such of the Directors of the
Company, who are neither in the whole-ime employment nor 8 Managing Director, &t a rate not
axceading 1% (oneé percentags) of tha ned profits of the Company in aggregale, for a perod of five yoars
with afect from 18t Apeil, 2013,



TVE SRICHAKRA LIMITED e

NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS (Contd.)

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directorns, ai thesr discretion, may decide on the quantum of
remuneration, by way of commission to be distributed amongst such of the aforementioned Directors,
from Bime to ime, as they may deem fit, within the cverall imit of 1% (one percentage) of nat profits of the
Company

By Order of the Board

Flaca : Chennal SHOBHAMNA RBAMACHANDHAAMM
Date : 2252013 Managing Director

Regsterad Office -
TVE .

Building
7-B, West Veli Stres
Macural 825 D01,

NOTES:

1.

AMEMBER, ENTITLED TOATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING., IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE
OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY OR
PROXIES SO APPOINTED NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OR MEMBERS, AS THE CASE MAY BE. OF
THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY AND THE POWER OF ATTORNEY
OR OTHER AUTHORITY, IF ANY, UNDER WHICH IT IS SIGNED OR A NOTARIALLY CERTIFIED
COPY OF THAT POWER OF ATTORNEY OR OTHER AUTHORITY SHALL BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY, NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME
FIXED FOR HOLDING THE MEETING.

Tha explanatony statement pursuant 1o Section 173(2) of the Companias Act, 1958, In respect of tha
spacial business a8 sol out in [he NOtice is annexéd herolo.

Tha Register of Members and the Share Transfer register will remain closed from  20.8.2013 (Friday) 1©
£3.9.2013 (Wednesday), both days inclusive, for the purpose of Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

In terms of Section 205A read with Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1958, the dividends deciared by
he Comparny, which remain unclaimed for a penod of seven yoars will be transferred on due dates 10 the
Invesior Educaton and Pratection Fund (1EPF) established by ihe Central Government. The particulars
ol due dalos lor ransler of such unclaimed dnadends 0 IEPF ane fumished in tha report on corparalo

povernancs, iormang part of the annual repor.

Mambers wha have not encashed their dividand warrants in respact of the above periods ang reguesiod
to make their clakmi{s) by surrendering the unencashed warrants immediately 1o the Company.

Pursuant 1o Investor Edecation and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and
unciaimad amount lying with Companies) Rules 2012, the Company shall provide / host the recuired
datails of unclaimed amounts refermed 1o under Section 205C(2) of tha Act on its wabsite and also in the
wabsite of the Minstry of Corporate Afairs (MCA) in the relevant form every year. For ihe financial yaar
ended 31 st March 2012, the above information has already boen filed by the Cempany.



NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS (Contd.)

8.

Mombers holding shares n physical form, in ther own interesl, are requested o dematonalizo the
shares to avail the benefits of electronic holding | trading.

Members ara requesied to notify 1o the Company any change in thes address immediately, Members
holckng shares in electronic form ane requesiad o advise change ol correspondance and emasd
addresses to their depository parlicipants.

As a measure ol economy. copies of the annual report will not be distributed af the annual general
meeting. Members are, theralore, requested to bring thes copes of the annual report 1o the meeting.

Mpmbers are requested 1o affix thair signature at the space provided on the attendance slp annexed o
proxy lorm and hand owver tha slip at the entrance of the meeting hall

Members intending to require information about accounts 1o be sxplained at the meeting are requested
o write 10 the Company atleast seven (7] days in advance of the AGM

In terms of clause 49(IV}{G) of the Listing Agreemaent with the Stock Exchanges. a briel reaume of
directors who are proposed to be re-appointed | appointed In this annual general meeting, nature af

their expertise in specific functional areas, their other directorships and commitiee memberships,
their shareholdings and relationships with other directors in the Company are given below

I

sl
No.
1

2

Mr HJanardana lyer
Bormon 17th June, 1848, Mr. H Janardana lyer is a B.E. graduate in Mechanical Enginaering.

He is having more than lowr decades of tachno commercial expenence in the field of marketing Capstal
Equipments. His spacializalions have bean in chnical marketing of Earth Moving Equipments,
Construction Equipments, Mining Equipments and material handiing Equipmants bath in India as well
asin Inlamational markets

He does nol hold any share in the Company and is not related to any director of the Company in herms of
he Companies Act, 1958. He s a member of the Audit Commiltee of the Company.

Mr S Narayanan
Bom on 2nd Juna, 1825, Mr. & Narayanan possess CA. Inter qualification

Ha haa gol more than fve decades of expenence n automobile industry, particularly on sale of spare
parts and service. He has expertise in markeling and procurement functions, apart from general
manageman.

He holds 21945 equity shares in the Company and ks not related to any director of the Company In terms
of the Companies Act, 1956. He is a member of the Shareholders | Investors Grievance Committes of

the Company. Details ol his other directorships and memberships [ chairmanghips of commitiees ano
gpiven balow:

Committee memberships /
MNama of the company Position held Chairmanships
Lucas Indian Service Lid, Direcior s
india Motor Pans & Accessones Lid Chalrman Shareholders / Invesiors

Committes
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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS (Contd.)

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
1956

The lollowing explanalony stalemeant sels oul all material facts relabing o the special business mantonad in
the accompanying notice dated 22 5 2011 and shadl be taken as lorming part of the notice

Item Mo. &

Al the Annual General Maeting held on 18th September, 2008, payment of Commession 1o non Whale-Time
Directons has been approved lor 3 period of five years with efiect from 18t Apiil, 2008 and upio 318t March,
2013

As the roles and responateiters of non Whole-Tirme Directors have conassderably moroased, it s desable o
pay remuneralion by way of commission on an annual basis 1o non Whole-Timo Direclors. lor further
poriodis ), &% S0f out undor llem Mo 8 of tha nobon coraning this moating

All the Direciors. excepi Mr R Maresh, Executive Vice Chairman and Miss Shobhana Ramachandhran,
Managing Drecior are interesiad in the resclution.

By Order of the Board

Place © Chennai SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN
Date © 252013 Managing Director
Rogistensd Offon :

7-B. West Vel Strool
Madural 625 001,



TVY FRICHANRA LIMITEFD
FIVE YEAR PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE

A In Lakhe
PARTICULARS 2008-09 | 2008-10 | 2010-11 | 2011-12 [ 2012-13
A. OPERATING RESULTS
GROSS INCOME TFL -3 15018 118318 140830 | 1518
PROFIT BEFORE DEPSL INT. & TAX 41682 Fi I 10264 12669 | ZRET
PROFIT BEFORE INT. & TAX 375 5899 BEZ 10610 | 10448
PROFTT BEFORE TAX (PET) 1316 £337 5717 BATE 4T
PROFIT AFTER TAX (PAT) 901 poa2 W7 s asen
DVIDENDS 58 i -1 1034 Lr4
DOVIDEND TAX a5 130 50 168 a8
RETAINED FROFTTS GBI anas 2801 b | ey
B. FINANCIAL STATUS
GRAOSS FINED ASSETS jasay | ez 24091 20812 | s0zs7
MNET FIXED ASSETS T8 11538 85 18873 21643
INVESTMENTS 125 2 281 1662 1908
MET CURRENT ASSETS | S80T 14877 21 H06 27620 18058
SHARE CAPITAL TeE 766 e 766 766
RESERVES AND SURPLUIS 5 TEIT 10618 133892 10258
MET WORTH 8407 583 11384 14158 17054
LOAN FUNDS 1572 17426 25581 32029 32098
DEFERAED TAX LIABILITY (NET) 742 747 w7 1287 278
TOTAL CAMTAL EMPLOYED 23061 LT ] e by e S0AE4 42530
C. KEY RATIOS
PBOIT TO NET SALES ) 687 i 838 a6z 575
PEIT TO NET SALES %] " 528 T8 80 7.4 411
PET TO NET SALES (%) * 20 538 47 248 0.04
FEIT TO AV CARITAL EMPLOYED () " 1334 2143 213 £o.84 3T
RETURN ON AVERAGE NET WORTH (%) sz | s 923 i | 22es
EARNMNGY FER SHARE (R4 ) 11.78 38 54 81.15 51.82 46.55
DIVIDEND PER SHARE (R | # 410 11.70 1457 15,70 877
DIVIDEND PAY DUT (%) # 2481 2004 &0 45 30.22 168.43
BOOK VALUE PER SHARE [Rs ) sa8s | 1200 148 67 18400 | 20072
DEBT EQLITY RATIO (WO OF THAES) 242 203 225 240 1.37

* Excluding other ncomes
¥ Including divicend tax
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
The Dereciors have phéasure an presanting the thirtieth annual epod and the audied acoounts lor tha yar

gnded J1st March, 2013

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Rs. in Crora)
Details Year ended Year ended
31.3.2013 a3 a2
Salos & Othar Incomd 1516.89 140030
Profit belors finance cos! and depreciation 128.65 130,67
Less : Finance Cost 57.18 b
Depreciation 24,22 0.7
Profit after bnance cost and depreciathon 47.26 5.TS
Lisss - Prowasson boe
- Income tax 1.78 12,00
- Dalerred tax 9.80 3D
Prolil after lax 45,67 J8.TH
Surplus browght forward from Previous Year ik s
Appropnatons
Dradond payabla 5.74 10,34
Dwdend Tax payabie 0.98 1.67
Transfiar 10 Goneoal Resar 160 .00
Balance camed io Balance Shesi 135.72 110,37
BPUIT OF GROSE REVENUES HET BEVINUEE
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (Conitd.)

The Deeciors are peased to recommand a dividend of As.7.50 paf equety share of As.10(- aach (Lo T9%] lor the
financial yoar onded 31st March, 2013 absorbing a sum of As. 671 .88 lakhs, including tax on dividend, for the approval

of the shareholders, al he ensuing Annual General Meefng
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PERFORMANCE

Company's sakes and other ncome has recorded a marginal growth from Rs. 1408 Crom 1o As 1518 Crore despite the
noi-s0-good market conditions, with particular reference to Aller-Markeat,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

i |

j-qu--l--r--u T |
_— .

1. Industry Strecture and Development
Domestic

indian Economy grew by 5% during 2012-13 as against the growth of B.2% recorded the previous year, This is
bedieved to be the lowest growth rate in the las! decade. Economic Survey of India has painted an oplimistic
piciure of indian economy for the year 2013-14 siating that the "down-turm” is more of [ess over and progected a
GDP Growthol 6.1% 106, 7%

e




DIRECTORS' REPORT (Contd.)
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Global

Growth in Global economy has almos! dropped lo 3% dunng 2012-13. Dunng the year 2013-14 also,
uncertainty across the regons - from the post-alection fiscal debacke’ question in the United States 10 the
Chimaa loadershn transition and reforma in tha Ewro area - will contings to have global impacts in sluggish
rade. Across the advanced aconomies, the outiook predicts 1.2% growth in 2013 as against 1.1% in 2012
This slight upsurge 18 dus 10 Europs which in expactad to return 1o A very slow growth of 0.3% after the -0.2%
coniraction during 2012. The growth in United Siales marke? is expected 1o fall from 2.2% i 201210 1.6% m
2013

& Business outlook and overview
Original Equipment Manutacturers [OEMs)

The overall outlook for the year is not upbaeal and is a1 4% for the year 2013-14. Your Company with its presence
in Honda Motorcycie & Scooter India Pyvi Lid, s confident of a growth higher than the Industry growth. Tha
growth is expectad to ba around 18%in the year 2013-14



DIRECTORS' REPORT (Contd.)

After Market

Tha yoar ks lely to be highly compeatitive and your Company (s geared up 1o mest the challenges through
launch of numerous new products during the first half of 2013-14.  This will help us 1o achieve tha growth of
miinimium 105 over e poivious yoar.

3. Opportunities & Threals

Replacamand Tyra markst in India |8 sxpected 1o 1ouch R 30,500 Crare by 2013-14 and all the tyra companses
are ramping up fheir capacity to meet this demand. The replacement markel. which constitutes more than 50%
of the indusiry and a key locus area for the tyre manufaciurers due o higher mangine, would continue o grow
taster owing 10 tha high growth in vehicle sales seen over the last lew yoars

There are no major threats for tha Indian Tyre industry other than rising imports from countries like China and
South Horaa

d, Risks and concerns

Economy

Bigges! risk tacing tha indian economy is the high cument accouni defolt which s well above the sustainable
level of 2 5% of GDP Financing a large Current Account Deficit sxposes the sconomy to tha risk of sudden stop
and revorsal of capital Bows.

irsgstiment sentiment remains inhibited owing o subdued business confidence and dented business
profitabiiy, Borrowers have bacome rsk averse bocausa of govemance conoams, delays in approvals, For
lenders, risk pversion stéms from the arosion of assed guaity.,

Efectiveness of monatary policy could be undermined by supply consiraints in the economy. Food price
PrESSUres, upward rivisons in the minmum support prices and rapid wage increases are Wading 1o 4 wage-
price spiral.

Industry specific

Performance of indian Tyre industry is directly linked to the performance of automative sector. In view of the
incroased concontration on DEM busingas, any slowdown in the aulomobda secton will mmadiately affect tha

Indian Tyre industry

Continuing economic uncertainty, lower growth in automobile sector aflfecting the demand from OE sagment,
giobal slowdown affecting the oxports from India, non-availablity of skilled manpower, creation of axcess
capacity by the players in the market are the major concerns for indian Tyre indusry,

Sourcing

Volatility in raw material prices has been a concem for any tyre Company in india. In order 1o bring in
compedition, your Company s inying to.come oul of single vendor system and i5 developing new vendors. In
addition 10 the above, Company is initialing cost reduction maasures in all fronts which includes procurement of
raw materisls, without aflecting quality or any other parameters.
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-

Forex

Your company may gol aflected by giobal curmency fluctualions or Exchange fuctuation may resull in

uniswourable conditions. Your Company is taking appropriate cover 1o protect tha volatity in exchange rate
Huciualion to the maximum exdent possiblé.

Contractual

High quality products are demanded by contractual terms by almost all the Origenal Equipment Manufacturems.
Every oflon is Deing made 10 énsure quality but af the Sama me, defocts miry ead Lo rework or product recall
with the resuitant expenditure. Your Company has taken appropriate product recall and liability insurance in
line with stanciird industry peactice to mitigate these risks.

Capacity utilization

Your Company has gol sufficient capacity to take care ol its requiremaents for the year 2013-14. Product mix
change may be & sk 1o boe managed appropratety by the Company. Your Company |3 developing Bexibility to
handle such product mix changes in shor notice 30 that the over all production does not get aftected, MNew
capacities aro being buill 1o cater 1o the technological changes happaning in tha markat, such as, tubeloss
tyves, radial tyres, olc

Internal Control System and their adequacy

The Company has eflective and adequale intemal conirol sysiams covering all areas of operations. Tha
internal control system prowvides for well documented policies | guidelines, authorizations and approval
procedures.  The intemal control system stipulaies a reasonable assurance with regard o mainianing ol
proper accounting controts, protecting assets from unapproved use and compliance of statules.

The Company, through its own Internal Audit Department, carmes out ponodic audits at all locations and
functions basad on the plan approved by the Audit Commiftes. The obaervations, ariging out of pudn, are
pernodically reviewed and compliance ensured. The summary of the Intermial Audil obaervations and the stalus
on implementabon of cormecive aclions ane reportizd to the Audit Commities of the Board of Directons for thr
eI,

Operations roview

Manutacturing

Continuous improvemanis an implismentied 1o improve manuiaciunng quality and productnity in mary of the
manulaciuring areas.

Cost Management

Value ongineering, reducing process scrap and operational efficioncy projects are belng pursued with the help
ol outside consultants.

Infarmation Technology

Your Company nas successfully implemented SAP ERP system and he inilid leething problems hane been
sorted out. Stabilization is taking place in all the processas which will lead 10 overall sfficiency improvemant.
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7.

10.

1.

Human Resource Developmeant

Your Company has always considered its Human Resources as an assel and is committed towards Hos
dervplopment for conBinuous growih. Our balel is thal highly engaged, inlenied and innovative peopis can lead
o Business Excellence

Towards this end, many training programs were conductad 1o develop the personality and outiook of its
empioyess. Employes relationa continue io be cordial except for some minos labor Issues in Utirakhand Plant
which were laler resobred amicably,

Environment & Salety

The Company s hully committed to the ultimate goal of employee safety. Safety managerment is infegrated with
the overall Ervronment, Health and Safety (EHS),

Community development and social responsibility

Company & inftialing lo! of schemes 1o alleviate the sociotal developmant in and around the factory bry

canducting health camps, women empowerment camps, Life skill programs, Waste Managemen! programs,
el

Financial ' operational performance

Rz in Cromne
Mot Sales & Ot InComa 1519.689
Met profit 35.68

The operabons of the Comparny relata to the manutacture and sale of rubber products such as hyres. ubes and
faps

Tha volatile price of natural rubber, our rmajor raw rmatedal, has impacted the performance of the Company. This
has lorced your Comparny 10 ofhact price comacthons in the market

Despite this, the Company has achisved the aales Winover of As. 1519 Crore, which i 8 landmark achbevement.
This reflacis o salos growth of 5%

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives, projections,
esimaias and expectalions may be forwand Iooking siaternents within the maaning of applicable securities
laws and reguiations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or impliad.  imporant isctom
that could make a difference to the Company's operations include among others, economic conditions,
global and domestic supply and demand situations, input prices and thee availabdity, changes in Government
reguiations. tax @ws and other faciors such as industrial relations and economic devolopments efc. may
influence the Company's operalions or periormance
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (Conitd.)

CORE BUSINESS
Your Company’s core business is manudaciure and sale of tyres and lubes lor automobve applications.

in order to concentrate more o its cose business, the Directors have decided to hive off i1s non-core investments and
fon-cone properties in the name of its 100% subsidiary, M's TVS Srichakra Investments Limited. In line with this,
cerain actions have boon indiated during the year  This will be continued in the COmIng years also so thal your
Company can concentrale on its cora business and all the non-core activities are taken care of by its 100% subsadiary.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Since the following companies conlinue as subsidiaries of the Company. theer audited accounts have been
consobdalod with those of the Company as on 3158 March, 2013

a)  TVS Srichakra Investments Limiled
bl TVSEwope Distribution Limited
CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

As required under the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges. the consolidated financial staterments of the
Company are attached.

The Ministry of Conporalio Affasrs (MCA) vide ts circular No.2 in filke No.51/1272007-CL-0| dated Bih February, 2011 has
granted general exempton from attaching annual reports of subsidiaries along with the annual report of the holding
companies without seaking amy apgroval of the Central Governmant, Subject 1o the coneitions laid down tharsin,

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 22.5 2013 passed necessary resolution for complying with all the
conditions anabkng the corcutaBon of annual report of the Company withoul aftacheng all the dacumants rofermad 13 in
Section 212(1) of the Act, ol the subsidiary companies tothe sharehoiders of the Company,

The annual accounts, reports and other documents of the subsidiary companes will e made available to tha
members, on receipt of A reques! fromthem. The annual accounts of the subsidinry companiag will be available ol the
registerad office of the Company and at the registerad offices of the respactive subsidiary companies concerned. If
Aty mambar oF Freialod winhid 10 napbct o samad, i will ba svislabh dufing the busnass Rours of any working day ol
the Company.

A stntermont giang tho following infeemation in aggregate of sach subsidiary including subsidianes of subsdianes
consisting of () capiad, (b} resenves (c) total assets (d) total kabilites (o) details of investment (f) wmover (g) peofit
bolome tmmbion (h) provison lor imeebion (i) profil sfter teation () propossd dividend has been attached with the
consolidated batance sheat of the Company in compliance with the conditions of the said circular asued by MCA

A staternent relerred to in clause () of sub-section 1 of Section 212 of the Act deciosing the Company's interest in
subsdiaries and other information &s required, is altachisd,

M's H Janarcana lyer and S Narayanan, Directors, will ba retinng at this annual general meating and, being eligible,
offer thamselvas for re-appoiniment

The brief resume of the aforesaid Directors and other information have been detailed in the Notice convening the
Annual Ganeral Maating of the Company. Approprialé resclutions for their re-appomntrmanit are being paced for

(4]
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approval of the sharehoiders al the ensuing Annual General Maeting. Your Dirctors recommaend ther re-
appoinimaent as Directors of the Company,

Mone of the Directors is disqualified under Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act. 1856
AUDITORS

Mis Sundaram & Snnivasan Chanered Accountants, Madurai, retire in accordance with the prowvisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and are ebgible for re-appointmant. The Company has recered a latter from them stating that
thie appointment, il made, shall be within the prescribed limit under Section 224(18) of the Companies Acl, 1956. The
Audit Commiltes and the Board mecommeonds the re-appomniment of M/s Sundaram & Srinivasan, Charterod
Accountants, Madural, asthe Audiiors of the Company.

COST AUDITOR

The Board of Directors have appointed Dr.| Ashok, Cost Accountant, Madural a3 Cost Audior for carmying out
thecost audit of the Company for the financinl year 2013-14 subject o the approval of the Coentral Government

The Company has receved aletierfrom the said Cost Accountant, stating thal the appointment. #f made. will be
within the prescribed limil under Section 224(18) of the Act.

For the financial year under review, 8 Cost Compliance Repon will be obtained and will ba filed with MCA portal within
the sipulaled fiman ierms of Companses (Cost Accounting) Reconds Rules, 2011,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has been practicing the prncipies of good corporate govemancs over the years and lays sirong
emphasis on transparency, accountabifity and integrity.

A soparale seclon On conporale govamanca and a cortificata irom tha statutory awditors of the Company reganding
compliance of conditions of corporate govemance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the
Stock Exchanges form part of the annual report,

The Managing Director and the Vice President - Finance (CFO) ol the Company have certified to the board on
tnancial stalements and ofher malters in accordance with  Clause 48 (V) of Ihe Listing Agreoment pertaining to
CEQ/CFO cenification for the Bnancial year ended 31st March 2013,

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

in compliance with the deectives issued by the Securites and Exchange Board of ingia (SEBI), Secretanal Audt is
being conducted by a Practicing Company Secretary ot specifled periodicity and the reports are being submitted to
the Stock Exchanges

STATUTORY STATEMENTS
Conservation of energy, technology absorpiion and foreign exchange earnings and ouigo

As per the requirernants of Section 217(1)(e) of the Act, read with the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the
Repon of Board ol Dreciors) Rules 1988, the miormation regarding consenvation of anergy. technOiogy absorplion
and foreign exchanga eamings and OUlgo @76 given in Annexurg 1o this repon

[1s]
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Particulars of employees

Mo amployes of the Company wasm eceqpl of remuneration durng the Brandcial year 2012-13, inexcess of the sum
prescribad undes Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1958, read with tha Companies (Pariculars of Employess)
Rulas, 1875

Public deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public within the meaning of Secton 58A of the Companies Act.
1956 for tha year ended 3151 March, 2013,

Directors Responsibility Statement

In accandance with the provisions ol Saction 21 T[284) of tha Aot with respect o Directars' Rasponsibiity Statamant, i
i= hateby stated

B} That in the prepamtion of accounts for the financial year ended 313t March, 2013, the applicabile accounting
standards have bean followed, along with propér explanation relating 1o materal depanures,

b}  That the Direciors had selected thae accounting polices and appled them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent, so as 1o give a true and lair view of the stale of aflairs of the
Company ot the and of the financial yaar and of the Prafit of the Company' 108 th year umnder e

€}  Thatthe Direclors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1856, lor saleguanding the assets of the Company and
lor preventing and detecting fraud and other rreguiarities; and

g}  Thad the Direciors have prepaned the annual accounts for the year ended 3181 Manch, 2013 on a “going concesm”
bxsas

ACKHOWLEDGEMENT
The Direciors thank the bankors, cusiomarns, dealars and vendors lor thas support and encouragemaont.

The Direciors with (o place on record their appreciation of the coniribution made by the ampioyses which made i
possible lor the Company 10 achieve Ihese resuits.

The Directors also thank the investors for their contnued taith in the Company,

For mnd on bahall of the Board
Place : Chennal SHOBHAMA RAMACHANDHRAN H MARESH
Date @ 7252013 Managing Direcior Execidive Vice Chairman
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information pursuant to Section 217(1)(e] of the
Companies Act, 1956

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

g} Mpasyres taken
Electrical

1.

il

iy

i

i)

Electrical enorgy consarvation audit wilh
extomal agency conducied, and as per
their report, the following energy
CONGEnABoN acthvillies complolad,

We removed forced dral cross Row
cooling lowers and replaced with fnless &
fan less cooling lowens In appropriats
locations.

Genarators diesel consumption reduced
by fing luning the running frequencies

Compressed air conserved by leak
managament. One CoOMpEassor running
stopped.

High prossure & low prossune o Bnes
sogregated, and the air distribution

stabilined.

VFD insialled for boiler PA fans, hence
pOwer Consumplion réduced

Additionnl capacity cONCaNSAIE necovey
maschancal pump ine ahamed & slectrical
LTI STOPHT

In Miing, expon. new pAINKING room anea

day kght piping systems provided, and the
afectrical powes reduced.

Sufficien! capacitors installed reida new
esport, Mod .25 and Mod 27 to maintain PF
umity and reduce Maximum demand.

Diesel consumption reduced by
optimization of DG usage with ioading
paltam

=) By opbmizing captive power asmikabiity in
belwoen 3 sarvica conneclions,
westment in 750 KVA new gensst
ediminatod.

x#) In cooling tower delivery pumps replaced
with energy effic:ant pumps

a) Highar capacity lighting energy saver
panel installed w0 suit the existing
additional lksads,

aiv) Additional vendors developod for capbng
power purchase, day 0 day power
purchase monitored & power cost kepl
unsdier coivinol,

Thaermal

ij MNew 15 tons boller installed o reduce
funace oil consumpfion, and confrofiad
T fusd OO0sst.

ij Steam to fuel rato in 10 TPH boier
improved with modification of new PA fan

i} In consumer end, plant wise Staam flow
meters installad for steam energy
consumplion monitorng & control the
consumption. plant wisa.

# In oxport plant 3 numbers now
Condensate Recovery pumps ngtalied
and reCovery Improved and food walor

ismparaiure increased for oplimizing
sleam genoration,

v)] Damaged insulation & identitied
uninsulated steam lnas wore insulated

wil Sleam cormsarved by leak management.

Wi} Flash steam reconsary system installed 1o
increasa the water recovery from flash
sloam

[+7]
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b} Addtional vestments and proposals, If any,
being implemented for reduction in
consumpton of enargy

) Fuel parameter ke calonfic value testing
equipment installed and testing started to
gel and control the fuel guaity to increase
tha steam Lo luel abo.

Bl  With new steam low moelirs In plant wisa,
planngd 1o affve specilic steam

Sondumplion plant-wise, and planned 1o
conirol the steam consumptions  with
respead o the produchion

c) impact of the measures al (a) & (b) above for
reduction ol energy consumplion and
consaquent impact on the cost of production
of goods;

fi Specificpower and fuel consumption

e Specific power Controlled with 065
unit/kg

e Specific fuel consumption in 10 TPH
beodlar, staam 1o fuel ratlo morsased from 4
nDe4

k) Specific Power and fugl cost.

) Total energy consumplion and energy
consLmpton porunitl of production.

FORM A
{A) POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION :

1. Electricky W/2-13 2012
fa) Purchased {Units} A208MTI METT421
Total Amount (Rs) 23T 168139447

Rate / Unit {Rs.) 563 485

{b) Own Generation

() Through Desel
Gengralng Sefs (Unts) 5287984
Uinits per ktre af

thesed il w
Cost/ Uinkt {Rs.) 18.26
i) Throusgh Wind il BRBG512
{lof Cagrtve
Consumption)
Total Cost (Rs) 1367902
Rate / Unit (As ) 0.16
2. Furnace ON
Ouantity (Litres) 14011086
Total Cost (Rs.) BOB001ST
Awerage rate (Rs.) / Litre 43.08
3. Othars
Ousantity (MT) §MT2
Total Cost (Rs.) 246500189
Average rate (Rs.) / MT 411,57

0433861

268

1315

7788380

22065278

028

3225978

2940

53621
184511181
P IR

(B) CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION

Electrcity (Units) 1.06
Fumace O [Litra) 0.08
(Others (Kgs) .10

28
0.17
20
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Efforts mada in technoliogy absorption as indicated
iy Formm "B

FORM B
RESEAACH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

1. Specific areas v winch R & D carsed owl by the
Company

Dovelopment of new afRemalé sources of raw
material 1o impfove Cosl competitvenass, product
guality improvemant by optimization of speciicalion
and wocess paramelans, newer processas lor
manutacture of domestic tyres.

2 Banalits detived as arosult of the above R & D:

The R & D activilies carred cul by your Compary
has assisind in mproving DE masket share and also
proved your Companys abslity o miroduce new
products, including products  with  upgraded
capabilities, as and whan required by domestic
rearket, Desiches antonng b now Oversoas market.

J. Future Plan of Action:

Manuiactung of new products for both domestic &

export markel and expanding 1o néw range of tyres
tar bath Domastic / Export markoat

Tachnoiogy upgracaiion 1D improns procnss yseld

4. ExpenditureonRAD: Rs. inCrors
a) Capial 242
b} Recurring 11.86
c} Total 1428

d} Total R & D saxpandiure as &
percantage of lotal urnoves 0.94%

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND
INNOVATION:

Efftorts n bnef made lowards lechnology
absorpbon, adaptaton and mnovalion:

Introduction of new products resultad in highes
growih in DEM & Export markets and improved
consistency in quality of product / Process

Benefits derved as a resuit of ihe abowe efons

Company was able o develop B whaole range ol
now products lor OEM, Replacement Market and

Expaort Market. in the shortest development cyche
T

Data ralaling to imporied technology

(Technology Imported during the last 5 years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial

year) -NA
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO :

&) Activities relaling 1o éxpons; indiatives taken
o increase exports. development of new
CxpOM MarkMs 1of products and sennces and
export plans.

b) Earmings
Exports Ris, 10694,96 lakhs
Interast Rs. 42.50 lakhs
Others Rs. -

¢} Outgo Ais. 30950 23 lakhs
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company's philosophy on Corparate Gavernance

Tha Company bolleves in ensuring corporate fainess, ransparency, prolessionalism, accountabiity and
propriaty in total lunctioning of the Company. Company also believes in the philosophy of continuous
improvemant in all facets of #s oparations. Budgets. investmant propasals. significant developments are placed
before the Board. Audit, Share Transler and Shareholder and Investors Commutiee meets in sufficient intervals to
consichor aspects redevant 10 each commitian,

The Company's corporale governance philosophy has been further strengthened by adopting a Code of
Business and Ethics and Code of Canduct for Prevention of insider Trading for Board and Senior Management
Personnol

The Company baboves that good corporate governance is assential 1o achieving lang-term corporate godals and
for mestng the needs and asprations of its stakeholders, including shareholders.

Thirs ané comprahanshng inlamal conbrol managamant eporting syslems onall funchons and they ane ninsewed
by ha Senor Managermant and the Board.

The Company would constantly endeavour I improve on these aspects
Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (The Board), consisting parsons with considerable professional expertise and experence,
provides leadership and guidanca 1o tha managemant, theroby enhancng stakoholdars' valua.

2.1 Composition ond category of directors

As at 315t March, 2013, and on the date of this report. the board consists ol esght directors. Al the direciors
except Executrve Vice Chairman and Managing Director are non-secutive directors.

in torms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreemant. the Company is requined o have fifty por cont of its dirocions
as independent directoms

Out of the stx non-exaculive difectors, four direclors are non-execulive - Independent direciors viz.,
Mis M S Vicaraghavan, N H Althroya, Sitaram Rao Vallun and H Janardana hyor,

Thus the composition of the Company's board ks in conformity with the Listing agreamant.

2.2 Board Moetings

The Company, in consuliation with the Directors, prepares and cirouiates o tentative annual calendar for
the meetings of the committoes / Board in order 10 faciitale and assst the Directors for planning their
schadules wall inadvance o particapate in he maebngs.

Thie Company ragulary places, bafore the Board for its review, the informaben as regusred under Claiss 40
ol tha Listing Agreamant such as annual operating plans. capes bsdget and its guartarly updales, quarory
resufts, rinutes of meotings of Audd Commilloe and othet committoes of he Board, quaitaily detalls of
loraign exchangs ExpOSUres. fisk managemant and mitigation maasunes. report on compliance of all lrws
applicable o the Company, prepared by the Company as well as sieps taken by the Company to rectify
instances of non-complances, if any etc.,
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Comprahensively drafted notes for aach agenda em along with background materials, wherever
nécessary, are ciculsted well n advance to the committes |/ board, 1o enable them for making value
acdition as well as exercising their business judgement in the commities / board meatings,

During the year 2012-13, the board mat 6 mes on 26.5 2012 B.8.2012, 27 8 2012, 10.11.2012,16.1.2013
and 14 2 2013 and the gap betwean two meatings did not exteed tour months.

2.3 Attendance and olher Directorships

The oetails of attendance of tha directors & the board maetings during the year and at the last annual
general meeting held on 27th Septembos, 2012 and piso the numbes of other direclorships and commines

mamiberships [ chairmanships as o0 318t March 2073 aro as iolliows

Name of the Director M's Category| Altendance No. of Direclorships and
particulars commitiee memberships
held in other Companies
Board Last Othor Committee
Meeting | AGM | Direclorships | memberships
5 Marayanan NE 5 Yas 2 1
R Maresh EVC 6 Yes
Ms Snobhana Ramachanshran MD 5 Yes -
M S Viraraghavan NE-| 5 Yos
N H Atthvoya ME- - 1 1
Setaram Aao Valuri NE- 5 Yes &
P Vigayaraghavan NE 5 Yes 1 .
H Janardana lyer NE-i 5 Yas -
EVC - Executive Vice Chairman
MD - Managing Director

NE - Non Executive

HE-l - Non Executhve -~ Indepandent
Theiz abod inClucdes the memborship in the Board of othar Privaie Companies
Nona of the Dwectons an the board is & mamber ol more than ten committees or Chalrman of mone than
five committees across all companias in which they are directors. Membership of Committees include

only Audit and Shareholders / rvestors Grievance Commities as covered under Clause 48 of the Listing
Agreament, as perihe disclosures made by tha Directors,

2.4 Access ioinformation and Updation o Board
The Board reviews all information provided periodically for discussion ant considerabon al its meetings
iri terrms of Clause 48 of the Listing Agreemant. These are submitied either as a part of tha agenda papers
wall in advance of the Board Meetings or | are tabled in the course of the Board Mesalings.

[21]
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25

26

The Board also revwrws the declarations
made by the Managing Director and
Secretary of tha Company regarding
complance ol all applicable laws an
quarteity basks.

Code of Conduct

The Company has in placo the Code of
Conduct for Business and Ethics for
mambérs ol the Board and Sanioe
Management Personnel approved by the
Board, The Code has been
communicated Lo Directors and the Sensor
Managemeni Personnel Tha Code has
also been dsplayed in the Company's
wobste www.Ivilyres.com. All the Boarg
Mgmbers and Senior Management
Porsonnal have confirmed compliance
with the Code for the year endad 31st
March, 2013. The annual report contasns a
declaration 0 this effect signed by the
Managing Dieclor as compliance officer
of the Code.

Appoinimant | Re-appointment of
Di

in tarma of Clause 49{IV){G) of the Listing
Agreoman! with the Stock Exchanges, a
bried mesuma of Dencions, proposed o be
re-appoinied [ appoinied, nature of thair
mxpariss in speciic unclional areas, thair
other directorships and committee
mamberships, their shargholdings and
redationship with oiher direciors are
provided in tha Notice comvening the
ansyuing Annual General Meating of the
Comparny.

Audit Commities

=

az2

The pnmary objectve of the Audit
Committee (s to monitor and provide
efiecive supervision of the managament's
tinancial reporting process with a vew o
ensure nocurale, timely and proper
disclosures and Wansparency, mtegnty
s queality of financial reparting.
Tarms of Refarenca

Tha terms of raference of Audit Commities
covers the mafiers specified lor Audit
Committees under Clause 408 of tha Listing
Agreement as well as in Secton 292A ol
iha Companées Act, 1056, The Role of the
Audit Commities is as prescnbed under
Clause 49 (1) (D) of tha Listing Agreament.

Composaiion, namas of Members and
Chairmman

The Audit Committea consists ol
Mz M B Viraraghavan, N H Althreya,
P Viayaraghavan, and H Janardana lyer,
all non-execulive Directors of the

Company with Sri M § \iraraghavan as s
Chadrrman,

Company Secratary b 1ha Secretary of tha
Audit Commifiee

Chairman of the audit commities was
prasent at the Last annual general meating
heid on 27th September, 2012

The Composition ol the Commitios ia in
accordance with Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement and Saction 292A of the
Companies Act, 1656
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Tratr pusrticuibars of Mestngs and the aBsndance by
the members Of (e Audd Commetios are gheen below |

Duate of Me meabng  Membors presant (M/s)

2852013 U § Viearagharaan P Viayaraghavan
and W Janarcama lyer

BBI012 U 5 Viradaghdivan and H Jandrdana kyor

101122 W 5 Vraraghanan, P Vijayaraghavan
and H Janardana lyer

1422013 W § Viraragharan, P Vijgyaraghavan
and H Janardana lyer

Sereor Managemant also attend the meatings as

and when requinad.

Subsidiary Companies

4.1

32

The Audii Commities ol drecion reviews
the inancial statemants.

The minutes of the Boad meslings of
unlisted subsidiary Company Is
periodically piaced before the Board. The
Board is poriodically informed about al
signmificant transactions and
arrangamants pnlared inlo by ho unisted
sulbsician.

Disclosures

5.1

Matarially significant related party
ransactions

During Ihe year, the Company has nol
omtared into any tranaaction of matorial
nnture with this Directors, their relatives o
managemant which is in conflict with the

interest of the Company.

The transactions with the relaled panies.
namealy iis promolers, iis subsidiaries and
associate companies eic, which are of
routing nalure have been reporied
glsewhare in the annual report as pes
Accounting Standard 18 (AS18) issued by

53

5.4

The Instituta of Chartered Accountants of
India and Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2008

Tha Audll Commition s brislod, inlor aka,
on the lollowing aspacts :

(i} Re&lated parly ltransaclions
undertoken by the Comparny in the
otdhnary course of business

(i) Material indnadual transactions, if
any, which were not in the normal
course of business., and

Wi} Misierial ndividual transactions,
@y, with related parties or others,
which were nvot Bt arm's length basis.

Drsclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Company foliows the Accounting
Standard 18 (AS18) issued Dy The
Ingtitute of Chartared Accountants of India
and Company (Accounting Standards)
Ruke, 2006

Risk Management

The Compary has laid down procedures
o inloem the Board aboul the sk

assessment and minimization
procedures, o ensure thal esecutne
management controls rak throwgh maans
ol a propedy defined trameawork

instances of non-compliance(s),  any

Thare were no instances of non-
complances by the Company, penalties
and strictures  Imposed on the Company
by tha Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any
ot stalulory aulhorties on any matior
redated 10 the capital markets ouring the
yoar
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56

57

58

Disclosurd by sendor managemani
personrel

The senior managemon! parsonnsl Hava
made disclosures {o the Board relating to
all material. financial and other
transachons stating that thay did not have
any personal interest that could result n a
conflict with i interest of [he company at
large.

CEQ and CFO cortiication

The ManaQing Ditecior JCEQ) and the
Vice President - Fnance (CFO) ol the
Company have cenified 1o the Board on
financial and olher maliers in accordance
with Clause 49(V) of the Listing Agreement
pertaining 1o CEQ/CFD certification for
the financial year ended 315t March, 2013

Compliance wilh mandatory [ non-
mandatory requirements

Thie Company has compliod with ol
applicable mandalory requirements In
tarms of Clause 49 of tha Listing
Agreemeni. The non-mandatory
requirements have been sdopted o the
extant and in e manngr as sated undor
the approprinie headings deiailed
alsarwhinng in Uhis ropod

Code of Conduct for preventon of insider
Trading

n compiance with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Prevention of
insider Trading) Regulations 1592, as
amancad bl data, the Company has a
comprehensive code of conduct and the
Same i being strictly adnared 10 by the
Directors, Sonior Managemant and othar
persons covered by this code.

59

The Company regularly loliows closung ol
tracking wandow prigs 1o the publication of
price sensitive information. The Company
has bean informing tha directon. senior
management and other persons covenad
by the code about the same and advising
them not ba trade in Company's securities,
during the Closure of tradng wandow
perod.

Management discussion and analysis
report

The management discussion and analysis
report foims part of the Directors’ Report.

B. Remuneration Commities

6.1

62

Ramunemiion o directons

The board has nofl constituled a
remunaralion commities, & tha noed for
forming such commities has nol ateen

Sating fee of Rs.5,000/- each is pasd 10 the
Non-axecutive directors for svery meating
of the board and | or commities thereol
attended by them, which s within the
limits, prescribed under the Act.

As approved by the sharcholders ot the
25th annual general mooting of the
Company held on 18.9.2008, MNon-
mecutne Bnd ndepandent directons ane
besng paid commission, not excoeding
1% of the net profils of the Company.
subject toa maximuem, as determined by
the Board. for each such director for every
financial year for a pariod of five years lrom
151 April, 2008 to 315t March, 2013

The detalts of ramunemtion pald and tha
number of shares beld by the Non-
Exacutive Directors are as follows:
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7.

6.4

{a) Name (b} Smng Fess pald [Rs In
lakhs) (c) Commission paid [Rs. I lakhs)
() Totad [Rs. in lakhs] (g) No. of shares

(x) Mr S MNarayanan (b) .40 (c) 1.20 {d)
1.80 (o} 2195, (a} Mr M 5 Viraraghavan
B)045ici240(0) 2. 85 (o) 900,
fa) Mv N H Atthreya [b) N4 (c) 2.40 (d) 2.40
{e) 1200, (a) Mr Siaram Rac Vallun
b) 025 {c} 1.20 (d) 1.45 {e) Mil
{a) Mr P Vijayaraghavan (b} 0.75 (&) 2.40
{d) 3.15 (o) 150, (a) Mr H Janardhana lyer
(D) 045 (c)h 2.40(d)2.85 (e) MNil

Particulars ol remuneration pald to
Executive Vice Chasman and Managing
Direcior durng the fnancial year 2012-
2013.

{a) Mame (b) Designation (c) Salaries &

Allowances (d] Commission (&)
Perquisites (T) Total [Rs. in lakhs]

(a) Ma Shobhana Ramachandhran {b)
Managng Drecior (¢} 70.70 (d) 24.08 (&)
Nil () 4 0G; {a) Mr R Naresh (b} Executive
Vice Chainman (c) Nd (d) 24.00 (e) NiI(h
2409

Presently, the Company does nol have a
scheme lor grant of any #lock oplion
gither 0 Iha Exocuthva Direciors o
amployees

Shareholdors |/ Investors Grievance
Commities

71

72

The Shareholders | Invastor gnavance
commities congists of Mr 5. Narayanan,
M= Shobhana Ramachandhran and Mr. P
Vijayaraghavan as iis members. Mr 5
Marayanan s the Chairman of the
Committee. The Commitiea mel two
fimes during the year,

As required by the Secunties ang
Exchange Board ol India (SEBI),

T3

75

Company Secretary la the Compkance
Officer of the Shareholders | Invesions

Griavance Commitles., For any
clarification / complaint, the sharehoiders
may conact the Company Secratany,

The Committes oversees and reviews all
maftars connected with share transfers,
Ouplicnte share cenificaie, and ofher
issues pertaining to shares. The
commities also Iooks into the redmeszal of
imeastons gricvances pertaining lo transéor
of aharas, non-recaipl o balancs ahool,
non-receipt of dividends otc., The
Company, as a matter of policy, disposes
imesior complasnts within 8 span of three
days.

7.4 Complants received and redressed during

tha year 2012-13

S.No. Hature of
complaints

Ho. of
complaints

1. Non recaipt of 1
dividend

2. Transmisaion 1
Total 2

All the queres and complaints recenod
during the fnancial year ended 3ist
March, 2013 were duly redressed and no
quenes were pending for resolution on
thas data.

All requests for dematenalization of shares
were camad ou! within the sSpulaled
paviod and no share carificate was
pending for demateriadization,

E
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76 Reconciliaiion of Shane Capital Audit

A gualified practicang Company Secratany
carmes oul 8 Reconclistion of Share
Capatal (ROSC) Audit on a quarterty basis
to reconcile the 1olal admited capital with
Mational Securiies Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Dopository Sarvices
{india) Limited [COSL) with the total issued
and listod capital and the repord are
placed for the pernusal of the Board

ROSC Audit Report confinma that the total
Esued and the lsted capital s in
agresmment with the iotal number of shares
in physical lorm and the lotal numbaer of
shares in dematerialired form hald with
NSDL and CDSL.

General Body Meeting

B.1 Localion and timé whoem the annual general

meaetings were held during the last three years

Yoar Location Date & Tima

002 -10  Lakshmi Sundaiam Hal 20923010
15-A Gokhals Road, 10,00 AM
Machuran B34 002

210-11  Lakshwmi Sundaram Hall aa2011
154 Gokinaka Fond, 1030 A M
Madural 624 002

201112 Lakshmi Suondarmm Hall 2T 82012
15-A Gokhade Road. 1030 AM
Madura 625 002

B2 HMNong of the sublects placed bofore tho

shargholders in the las! / ensuong annual Qeneral
meeting required / requires approval by a postal
ballot. Mo special resolution was put through
dunng the lasi thres years.

Means of Commiunication

The Board believes thal effactive commumication
of miprmation s an essential component of
corporale governance. The Company reguiary
interacts with sharehoiders through multiple
channals ol communicaion such as result
annpuncemant, annual report. media release,
Glh-l'nl:lll'l'ﬂ"l websitea and spacific
communications to Stock Exchanges, where the
Company's shares are listed

9.1  Quanedly resulls

The unaudited quarardy hnancesl esults
of the Company were published in the
English and vernacular newspapers,
These &ra not sent indhadually to the
sharshoiders.

82 Newspapers wherain resulis are normalhy
published

The results are normally being publishoed
i thir English newspaper "Business Line®
and Tarml newspaper “Dinamalar”

83 Websis

The Company has in place a wob sio
addressed 8s www.ivstyrescom  Tha
wabaite contains the basic informalion
about the Company - detals ol s
business, financial Information,
sharaholding pattern, compliance with
corporate governance, contact
information of the designated oficial of the
Company, who s responsible for ass:sting
and handling invesior grievances, such
other dedsils as may be required unoer
Clausa 54 of the Listing Agresment. The
Company ensures that the contents of this

website are penodically updated
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Geoneral Shareholders infarmation

101

Annual General Mesting,
Data, Time and Venue

25th September, 2073 10,30 AM
Lakshmi Sundaram Hall

15-A Gokhale Road, Madurai 625 002

10.2 | Financial Yoar 181 Apeil lo 313t March
Financial Calendar 201314 (lentative)
Financial reposting lor tha Fimancial calondar
quarer encing
S0th June 2013 Bolore 141h August, 2013

J0th Septomber, 2013

Bodor 14th Movembaer, 2013

J1st December, 2013

Baodoro 14th Fabruary, 2014

Jist March, 2014 Before 30th May, 2014
10.3 | Date of Book cloduns From 20.8.2013 1o 25.8.2013
{Both days inclusive)
104 | Dividend Payment Data Dividend will be paid on 5.10.2013
105 | Listing on Stock Exchanges
Kamé of 1he Stock Exchange Stock code [ Symbol
Madras Stock Exchanges Lid TVSSEICHAK
Bombay Stock Exchange Lid 00243
National Stock Exchange of Inda Lid TVSSRICHAK
ISIN allofied s
m"!’w INE421C01016

Huh:mﬂhhiumMMIWMMWWHIB-HWWmem

the above Siock Exchanges and to the Depositonies.

107

Regstrar and Share Transter Agents

Ms irgrated Entenprisas (Incea) Lirmitod,
Channni

M5 Intgraied) Enterpises (Incm) Limitod,
Chennal, are acting as common agency
for all Imvesior BenACING actidties relating

to both slectronic and physical segments
Share Transler System

Shares lodged for iransfers are normally
processed within seven days from the
tate ol lodgement, # the cocurments are
valid in all respects. Al requests for
dematerialization o©f securilies are
processed and the confrmation is given to
the Deposiiones within thres days.

Grrvances received from shareholders
&N e MisCallansous coMasponoence
on change of address, mandates, eic are
processad by the Share Transfer Agent ol
the Company within thres days
Certificates are being obtained and
submitied to Stock Exchanges, on hall-
yaarty basis, from a Company Secretany-
in-practice lowards due compliance ol
share transier lormalities by the Company
within the due dates, in lerms ol Cimss
47(c) ol the Listing Agreemaent with Stock
Exchanges.
Certificates have also been recewed from
a Company Secrefary-in-practice and

(7]
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submitied o the Stock Exchanges, on a
guarierly basis, lor timaly
domatarinlization ol shares of ho
Company and for reconcilistion of the
shane capital ol the Company, as required
undar SEBI (Depositories and
participants) Regulations, 1996,

The Company as required under claune

47(h ol the Listing Agresment, has
dosgnated e loliowing o-mall (D9, namply

10.8 Dmtribution of shanaholding as on 315t March, 2013

109

investorgrievances@ivelyres.com/
damatiitvstyres. com for the purpose of
registenng complaints,  any. by the
imvestons and expeditious redressal of
their grievances.

Sharaholders are, tharalore, requesiad o
cofrespond with the Share Transfer Agent
for transfes | transmissbon ol shames,
change of address and quernes penning
to thewr shareholdings, dividends sic . af
the address given in Hhis report.

No. of equity shares MNo. of share - | % of share- | No. ofshaies| % ol share-
haid halders holders hedd habding
1 to 500 17199 9544 1872652 2446
501 wo 1000 531 295 JasTrz 504
1001 1o 2000 164 om 238231 an
2001 1o 3000 45 0.25 114982 1.50
3001 1o 4000 15 0.08 52684 069
4001 10 5000 17 0.09 77906 1.02
S001 1o 10000 13 ooy BTITo 1.14
10001 & above ar 0.21 4827423 £3.05
Total 18021 100.00 TBST050 100.00
Share Price Data
Monith Bombay Stock Exchange Lid (BSE) | National Stock Exchange Lid (NSE)
High Low High Low
Apeil 12 60.25 325.60 356.50 2505
May 12 350,00 313,70 aA51.05 3156.00
Jurn 12 33035 30275 a27 .68 306.85
Judy 12 34230 221,10 2338 65 32265
Aug. 12 34500 300.08 344 95 300.75
Sepl12 329,75 300,80 328.60 301.90
Det12 31360 206.10 314 80 206 .50
Mow. 12 3048 90 25245 404 80 249.50
Dec 12 278.85 263.05 281,55 283.30
Jan. 13 289 .45 249,80 268.05 251.75
Feb.13 254 05 208,60 253 .20 206 85
Mar.13 212.00 176.25 210.158 173.28
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10.10 Share price performanca in comparison (o broad based indices - BSE Sensex
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10,11 Demaloriaksalson of shares and lguidity

Ot of 4182230 shares hald by persons
other than promers, 3131673 shares
have been demalonalred as on 31st
March, 2013 accounting for 74 8B8%

The Company has already achieved 100%
ol promoter group’s shareholding In

demalerialized 1orm congsisting of

34T4B20 oquity shares ol thce value of
Rs. 10/ gach

10.12 Details ol public funding oblained In the

last thees yoars - Mo capital has been
rised inthe (281 threa yean

10.13 The Company has not issued any Global

Depository Recaipt / Amarican Depository
Receipt /| Warrant or any comwertible
instrument, which is lkaly 1o have impact
on the Company's equey

10.14 Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the

Company

M's Integrated Enterprises (India) Limsted
‘Kences Towers' || Floor, MNa.1,
Aarnakrahna Stroel, Morth Usman Road,
T Nagar, Chennal 600017

Preome 0444 - 28140801 - BDG

Fax(a4- 28142470

Email | corpsarv@integratadendia in

10.15 PManltlocations

Tamil Nadu

\. Vellaripaitl Vilage,  Melur Takuk,
Madiurai District, Pin 825122

2. Narmaingarmpatti Vilage, Therkutheru,
Meolur Taluk, Madural District
Pin 25 122

Littarakhand

Piot No.7. Sector - 1, Integrated industrial
Estale, SIDCUL, Pantnagar 263153,
Rudrapur, Tehsl - Kechha,

District Udham Singh Nagar, Uttarkchand
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10168  Acdress for COmmunication

TVS Srichakra Limitied,

Mo 10, Jawahar Road, Madural 625 D02

Fhone | 452 2420481,

Fax 0452 24200266,

Emad - imArSiongritvances vstyTea.com;
demaki@tvstyres.com,

wieDaite | wintw, IvsiyTes Com

Complance Officer

Mr P Srinivasan, Secretary

TWES Snchakra Limitod,

10 Jawahar Hoad, Madurai 625 002
Phone : 0452 - 2820461 1o 2420468,
Fox : 0452 - 2420266,

Email id - ps@tvstyras. com

Non Mandatory disclosures

The non mandatory requirements have been
adopted to the exieni and in the manner as

stated under the appropriate headings detailed
badow :

i1.i TheBoad

The non-onecutive directors of tha
Company are liable to retire by rotation
and il eligible, offer themsahas for re-
sppomtment. Mo specbc tenure has been
fwnd for the indepondent draciors

11.2 Ramunaraton Commities

The Board has not constiuted a
remunamiion commiiios, a8 the need for
forming such committoe has nol arisen

11.3 Shareholcers Rights

The quartarly / hall.yearty / annual results
of the Company are published in English
and Vemacular newspapers and are also
displayed on the Company's wadsile
namely www.ivstyrescom and in the

12.

oficial wabsie of the siock changes,
whers the shares ol the Company ane
ksbad [ (raded, as soon as (he resulls ane
approved by the Board. The resufls ore
ot sen tothe sharaholders indnadually.

1.4 Accit Cualilicaton

The stalutory financial statemanis of the
Compary arg undgualified,

11.5 Whistle Biower Poiicy

The Company has nol adopted whistie
biower policy. However, the Company
has an open door policy and provides
Accass io any omploveo 0 approach tho
management on any issue.

Request lo sharcholders

Shareholders ane requesied 1o follow the genermal
saleguard procadures as detalled hareunder in
order 1o sorve them efficiently and avosd risks
while deahng in securtbias of the Company.

121  Demat of Sharas

Shareholders ore requested 10 conwvern
thair physical holding 1o demat | electronic
form thwough any ol the Depository
Participants {OPs) 1o avold any possibity
of loss, mutilaton, elc., of physical share
cerificates and also 10 ensure sale and
Spoady ransacton in securities.

122 Regestration of Electronic Clearing Service
(ECS) Mandnte

The Sacurites and Eschange Board of
india has made i mandatory lor all
companiés 10 use the bank account
chotaits furnished by the Depositonies for
payment ol dihidend through ECS Io
irvistors wherever ECS ond bank datails
are avalable, The Company will nol
enterlain any direct reguest lfrom
mambers holding shareas i slectronic
mode for deletion ol | change in such bank
distaits. Moembers, who wish 1o change
such bank account details, are therefore
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requested 10 advise their DPs about such
change, with compleole detals of bank
BCCoUnt.

ECS hodps in guick remitiancs of dvidend
without possible loss / delay In postal
transi.  Sharcholders, who have not
parfier availed this facikty, are requested to
register their ECS details with the Share
Transler Agent ol Ihe Company oF thaw
respactive DPs

Transter of shansn physcal mode

Sharoholders should il in complete and
corect pariculars in the transhér déed, for
expediious ransfer of shares. Wherever
applicable, registration number ol powor
of attormey should also be quoled n the
ransier deed al the appropriate place.

Shareholgers, whose signatures have
undergone any change over a parod of
pme, are requested 10 lodge Meir new
specimen signature duly attestad by &
Bank Manages 1o tha share transier agént.

In terms of SEBI's circular no.
MADDoP/Cir-05M000 dated 20th May.
2008, i has become mandatory for
transiorees Lo lumish a copy of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) for registration of
iranslér of shaies 10 bé held in physical
G

Consoliciation of multipis fodios

Shareholdors, wno have multiple folios in
identical names, are requesied o apply
for consolidation ol such lolios and send
the relevant share cartificates to tha Share

Transtar Agent of the Company.
Registration of Mominations

Mominaton in respect of shares - Section
10894 of ihe Companies Act. 1856 providas
tacility for making nominations by
shareholders in respect of thesr holding of

1286

127

shares. Such nomination greatfy
faciitates transmission of shanes from tho
deceased shareholder to his / her
nomines, without having to go through the
process of obtaining succossion
certificate ! probsate of the will etc..

it woukd, therefore, ba in the best inferests
of the shareholders, holding shares n
physical form registerad as a sole holder
to make such pominalions
Sharoholders, who have nol availed
nomination gy, are requesiod to ol
the same by submitting the nomination in
Form 28, Thas form will be made available
at the Company's website
www ivstyres.com Shareholders holding
ghires in demal form are advised o
contact their DF's for making nominations,

Updation of address

Shareholders are requested 1o update
their address registered wilh the
Company. directly through the share
iransfer ageni, to receive all
COmmMUNICAToNS prompy,

Shareholders holding shares in alectronic
form are requesiad 10 deal only with thes
DPs in respect of change of address and
furnishing bank ascount NuMBer lc.,

SMS Aorts

invesions are requesied 1o note that
National Securities Depository Limited
[NSOL} and Central Depository Sensces
{india) Lmited (COSL) have announcod
the launch of SMS nlart facility lor cemat
account holders wharaby sharsholders
will rocaese alaris for debis [ crodis
(translers) io their demat accounts a day
after the respectve translers. These alerts
will Do sert 10 those account holders who
have prosicded their moblle nembers o

their Deposilory participants (DPs) and
made a request for such service. No

[21]
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charge will ba levied by NSDL / CDSL on DPs for prosiding thes lacility to mvastors. Furthar information is
avoilabie on the webaile of NSDL and CDSL. namply wwwnsdlooin and waw cdakngdia com
respectivaly.

Timaly encashmeni of dhidends

Shareholders ane requesied (o encash their dividends promplly 10 avoid hassles of revalidation | losng
your right o clasm gwing to transfer of unclaesmed dividends beyond seven years to Investors Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF)

As required by SEBI, sharsholdoers are requested 10 furnish dotosls of their bank acocount number and
name and address of the bank for Incorporating the same in the warrants, This would avoid wiong
crodits being oblained by unauthorized poersons

Shareholgers who have not encashed their dividend warrants in respect of divdend declared for the
fnancial yaar ended 315 March, 2006 and for any financial year thereafter may contact the Company
and surmendor thoir warrants fof payment.

Shareholders ane requestad 1o note that the dividend not claimed for a perod of seven years from the
date they first became due for payment shall be transterred to IEPF in larms of Saction 205C of the
Companies Act. 1956, Sharoholders are requested tonote that as per provissons of tha Companies Act,
1856, unciaimed dividends once translerred to IEPF will nol be refunded

informafion in respect of the unclaimed dividend of the Company with due date for remittance to IEPF is
G DOlow

Fnancial Year Oate of daciaration m mm E““‘“""“
31.3 2008 7.8 2005 12.9 2006 10.10.20713
91.3.2007 14.9.2007 20.10.2007 17.11.2014
1.3.2008 18.9.2008 24,10.2008 21.11.2015
41.3.2009 259 2008 31.10.2008 28.11.2018
3132010 2082010 183200 16.4.2017
21.3 2001 382011 B2 68.10.2018
31.3.2012 27.9.2012 2.11.2012 1.12.2019

Unclaimad Share Comificaies

In terma ol the provisions of Clause 5A ol the Listing Agreemaent, (introduced vide SEBI circular daled
16th December, 2010} the unclaimed share ceriificates were demalerialired and transferred to
‘Unclaimed Suspensa Account” with M/s Geojit BNP Paribas Financial Services Limiled, Kochi As
required under this clause of the Listing Agreament, the Company sent reminder lefters 1o the
shareholders, whosa share cenmificates were retumed undelivered or unclaimed,  Action has been taken
therealier 10 trangfer the unclaimed shares 1o "Unciaimed Suspense Acoount’ to comply with the
requirernent of this clausa of the Listing Agresmaent.  As and when the shareholder approaches tha
Company with required docurmants, the Company shall credit the sharnes hing in the suspense account
to tha demal account of the sharshaldo:



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Conid.)

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER
CLAUSE 48 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

To tha Mombears of
TVS Snchakra Lendtod

Wa have oxamined the comphance of canditions ol Corporate Govermance by TVS Shchakra Limited, for the year ended
on 31.3 2013, as stipulated in Clause 40 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchange(s)

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the managerment. Our examination was
kmied 10 procedures and implementalion hereol, adopled by the Company lor enguring the compiance of the
conditions of the Corporabe Govemancs. |t s neithar an sudit nor an expression ol opmeson on tha financial stalesrsnts ol
the Company

In our openion and to best of our informiabon and sccording 10 the axplanatons gven 1o us, we certily that the Company
has complod with ihe condilions of Corporala Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreomant.

W state that no imvestor grisvance is pending for i period exceading one month agains! the Company, as pes the reconds
maintained by the Shareholders / Imvesiors Grievance Commities,

We further stale thal such complance s nesther Bn assurance as 1o tha future viabdity of tha Company nor the efficiency or
effectivencss wilh which the manpgement haa conducted the aftairs of the Company

For SUNDARAML & SAIMNIVASAMN
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 00207 5

K 5 NARAYANASWAMY

Place : Chennai Fartnes
Dute - 22 52013 Membarship Mo DORSGI
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION
The Board of Direcions
TVS Srichakra Limited
Wa cerlify that -

a4l  We have reviewad fnancial statements and the cash flow statemant for the year ended 3181 March, 2013 and
that 1o the best of our knowledge and balkef

] These stalements do nol contain any matenally untrue stalement or omil any malenal fact! or contmn
staternants that might be misleading.
i) these stalements together prasent a true and tair view of the Company's aftairs and are in compliance

b}  Thers are, tothe bast of our knowledge and beliel, no transactions entarad into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulont, illegal or violative af the Company's code of conduct.

€}  We accep! responsibility for esiablishing and maintaining intemal controls for financial reportng &nd that we
have evalualed the efiectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company partaining Lo financial reporting
ani we have discliosad to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or opemtion of such
intamal controbs, i amy, of whsch wa ans awans and the stops we have Laken of proposa 1o ake (o reclity hisa
oeficiencies.

dl  Wehave indicated lothe asditoss and the Audil Committeo that there wang
] no significant changes in internal control over inancial reparting dunng the year,

i) no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that tha sama have been discliosed in
tha notes to the inancial statements, and

i) o instances ol significant fraud of which we have become aware and the invalvemant thanaln, f any, ol
the managemeni or an employee having a significant role in the Company's intermal control system over
fmancial reporting.

VALAMBAL VASUDEVAN SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN
VICE PRESIDENT - FINANCE MANAGING DIRECTOR

Place : Channai
Date : 2252013

CERTIFICATE
Tha Sharsholdan
TVS Srichalkora Limitod

I. Snobhana Ramachandhran, Managing Director of the Company, haratyy confirm that adl the Members of your Board
and tha Sanior Management Personnel of your Company, have confirmed the compliance to the Code of Condisct of
the Company, during the year ended 315t March, 2013

Place : Chennai SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN
Py £ 52010 MANAGING DIRECTOR

=]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED

Raport on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial
stalements of TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED [‘the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2013, and tha Stalament ol Proft and Loss
and Cash Flow Statameant for the year then ended, and
a summary of signsfican! accounting palicies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

Manageman! & responsible for the preparation of thesa
financial statements thal give & true and fair vew of the
of thea Company in sccordance with the Accounting
Standards refemed t0in sub-saction {3C) of Saction 211
ol the Companies Act, 1956 [“the Act’). This
mamntenance of mlemal conirol relevant fo the
preparation and presentation of the financial
stalemants that give a true and far view and are free
from material missislemant. whethar due to fraud or
BTk

Auditor's Responsibility

Dur responsitility i3 10 express @0 opinion on thosa
Friancil stalemants based on our auwdil. 'We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
india. Those Standards requine that we comply with
pthical requiremants and plan and pardfomm the awedit to
obtain rensonable  assurance aboul whotber the
financial statemenis are free from material
Messtatamant.

An aude imvolves performing procedures to obtain awdit
avidence about the amounts and dsclosures 0 the
financial stalemants. The procedures selected depend
an the awditors udgmaent, including tha assassmant of
e risks of materal misstatarnent of the financial
staterngnis, whother due 10 fraud or efror. In making
those nsk assessmonts, the auditor considers ntennal
control relevant (o the Company's preparation and tair
presentation of the financial siaterments n order 1o
design audit procedurea that are appropriata in the
cireumnstances, An audil a0 includes ovaliating the
approprialenads ol accounting policies used and tha
reasonablaness of the aocounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall
presenation of the financial statemants.

Wa bedieve thal the awdn svidence we have obinined is
sufficient and appropriate 1o provide & basis for our
ALl opinion,

Opinion

In our opinion and 1o the bost of our infoemation and
according 1o the explanpiions given 1o us, the fnancial
statements give the information requined by the Act in
the manner 8o required and give a true and lair view in
conformity with the accounting principles genavally
accepted ininda

a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, ol the state ol
afairs of the Company as at March 31,2013

b} In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, ol
the profit for the year ended on that date; and

g} inihe case ol the Cash Flow Statarnant, of tha cash
flows for ihe year ended on that date
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Contd.)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
Requirements as on March 31, 2013, from being appoiniad as
a deracton in lorms of clausa (g) of sulb-socton
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) (1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act. 1956
Ovrder, 2003 (he Order’) ssued by the Central
Government of india in lerms of sub-section (4A) of fi  Since the Censral Government nas not issued
saction 227 of tha Act, we give in tha Anneowre a any notficationas o the rate at which the CESS
statoment on the mahers specified in paragraphs 4 W 1o be paid under Section 441A of the
and 5 of the Order. Companies Act, 1958 nor has Il ssued any
Rules under the said Section, prescribing the
2 Asrequired by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report manner in which such cess is to be paid. no
that: CESS is due and payable by the Company,
8) We have obinined all the information and for SN R
ations which to the best of our
:Thﬂmwhﬂmmwfmthn Chanered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0D4207 S
purposs of our audit
K 5 NARAYARASWANY
Bl In our opinion proper books of account as Place - Chenna Pariner
required by law have been kepi by the Date : 2252013 Membership No 008503
Company so far as appears from our
Examinanon of hoso Dooks;

c) The Balance Sheel Stalomenri of Profit and
Loss, and Cash Fliow Siatement dealt with by
this Repon ane in agreemant with the books of
BCCOUNE;

d) Inouropinion, ths Bainnoe Shaast, Statemant of
Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Stalermant
comply with the Accouniing Standards roferred
1o in subsection (B3C) o Secton 211 of the

Companies Acl, 1056;

&) On the basis ol wrtten represantations
receied from the direciors as on March 31,
2013, and taken on record by the Board of



ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

The natura ol tha Company's business/aciivitias
during the year is such that, 10 the best of ow
knowledge and the information and explanations
given 10 us, clauses (i) & (xv) of paragraph 4 of
tha Order are not apphcabie 1o the Company.

a)  The Company has mamianed proped recosds
showing full particulars including quantitative
details and stuaton of fired assats.

b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified
by the Management al reasonable intervals.
According to the inlormation and explanathons
pghven 1o us, no maledal discrepancies wene
noticed on such verification,

c} The asssis dsposad-off dusing the year are
ot substantal and themedons do not afect the
going concomn stilus of tha Company
Further the invesiment translarmed during the
yoar doas not affect the gong concern status
ol tha Compary.

a) The inveniory has been physically varfied
during the yoar by tha Managemant. In our

opinion, e froquency of verfication is
reAsonable,

b The procedures ol physical verification of
invaniones loliowed by the Management ans
reasonable and adequate in redation 10 the
size of the Company and the nature of is
businass.

cl The Company has maintaned proper records
ol inveniory. The discrepancies nobiced on
vanfication between the physical stock and

tha book Mecords were nol materdal and the
same have bean properdy deall with in the
BCODUMDS.

. @) TheLoan of Rs. 1012 Lakhs granted during last

yaar 0 a subsidiary company has bDeen
recered Dack dunng the year., The interest ol
Rs 25,88 Lakhs is outstanding at the and of the
year. Ths interast of As.25 88 Lakhs has been
recared after 1he end of the accournting year

b}  Asexphained to s, The non-core acthties will
henceforth De camed by s wholly owned
subsiciary company. Consegquentially a sum
of Rs. 3353 Lakhs s oulstanding from this
Company a1 the and of the accounting year
winch (s imterest free. (Maximum outstanding
As. 3353 Lakhs)

€) In respect ol other loans and advances
granied. repayment is regular Paymant of
interest s alsoregular

- Inour opmion and acconding to the information and

explanaions gren 10 us, there are adequate
internal control procedures commensurate with the
suze of the Company and the nature of its business
with regard 1o purchases of invantory and foosd
sssels and lor sale of goods and there ane No Major
Witk naasos in such intarmal contiol

6. a) Accoedingtothe information and explanations

given 1o us, we are of he opinion that the
transactions thal need 1o be entered in the
register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies ACt, 1066 have bean 50 entersd,

(2]



ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS (Contd )

T

TVF TRICHANRA LIMITED

b} In our opinion and acecraing to the
information and explanalions given to us, tha
transactons made in pursuance of contracts
o mTangements enfcred 0 the regisio
maintained wunder Section 307 of the
Companies Act, 1856 and axceeding the vaiue
iof As.5 lakhs in respoct of any party during tha
yoar have been made at proes which are
reasonable having regard 1o the prevading
markot pices ot the relewvant ima.

The Companry has nol accapied depasats from tha
pubiic.

The Company has an intemal audit  sysiam
commensurate with the size ol the Company and
nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules
magde by the Cantral Govermnment for the
maintenance of cost records under Section
209(1)(d) of the Companias AL 1956 and are of
the opmnion thal, prma facw, he prescribed
accounts ang mecords have besen made and
maintained. We have nol. however, made a
deladed eaminabon of the reconds with a view 10
clatmrmnin whither thary ing RCCUnRabe or complote.

10. a) The Company is regular in depositing with

Bppropnete authonbes undispuied staiuiory
dues including Providant Fund. Invesior
Education Protection Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Excise Duty, Sales

Tax, Senice Tax, Custom Duty, CESS and
other malerial statutory dues applicabla lo iU

According o the mlormation and éxplanabons
given o us, no undisputed amounts payabilo
in respect of Income Tax, Sales-Tax, Service
Tax, Customs Duty, Excase Duty and CESS
wan jn armears. as at 31.3 2013 for a period ol
more than s months from the date they
becunie payabie.

Acoording to the information and explanations
given 1o us, the dues of Sakes Tax and Excise
Duty which have nol been deposied on
sccount of any dispute is furnished betow:

(Rs. i iabans)

Forum Whooe Encigg Sabes
Dizpute ks Panding Dy T

Cusioms, Excase and 158.00
Sardice Tax Appelate

Trbunal

Commessonne of Cenfral 183

Daputy Commessionee of 17.45
Critral Excild

Assistard Cormem gaioner of 285
Caritral Encite

Appelizs Tribunal
Aszessng Offcer - e

o



ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDITORS (Conid.)
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17.

Tha Company ooes not have any accumulated
losses and no koss cash or otherwise has been
incumed by the Company in the curment
hrsancial yaar or preceding fmancial year,

In our opimion and accondng to the information

nnd explanabons givon 1o us, the Company has
not detaulted in repayment of dues to Bank.

The Company has nol granied koans and
advances on the hads of sacunty by way of
phedge of shares and other Securtes.

The Company has not ghwen any guarantes
churing the year

In our opinion, on tha basis of information and
explanabons green 1o us, the tem loang wore
opplad lor the purposes lor which tha loans
were obtained.

According 1o the inlormialion and cxplanallons
given lo us and on an overall examination of the
Balance Shaat of 1o Compaiy, wa reparn thal
no lunds raised on shod-term basis have bean
usad for long-lerm ivestment.

The Company has nol Ssued any shares
during the year and hence the question of any
preferential allotment of shares 1o parties
covered in the regisier maintained under
Section 301 of the Companias Act, 1856 does
not ansea

19

Tha Company has not issusd any debanures
during the year.

The Company has not riesed any mongy by
issue of shares during the year

Accordeng 10 the nformation and cxplanations
gihven bo uE, no irawd on or by the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year

For SUMDARAL L SAINIVASAN
Chartored Accountants
Firm Registration No.004207 S

K S NARAYAMASYWAMY
Place - Chennai Parinas
Date - 22.5.2013 Membership Mo 00BSS0



TV SRICAKRA LIMITED e

i As. in lakhs)
BALAMNCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2013 Note No. 41.3.2013 J1.3.202
L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1  Shareholders’ funds
(8) Share capital | T65.10 TES. 7D
(b} Roserves and surphus 2 162687.64 13381.78
(€} Money recenved agains share warrants . -
2 Share application money pending allotment =
3 HNon-current liabilities
(1) Long-lerm borrowings 3 10705.40 13451.78
() Detorrod lax labdibes (Mot) i 2477 .83 1207 42
{c) Other Long term labilities 5 2865.10 1274.18
(d) Long-lenm Drowissons B 226,75 148 43
4 Current liabilities
(m) Short-term bomowings 7 11529.22 1685143
) Tmde payables B TTB.26 24301 .98
{c) Other current iabliies 9 1585.99 72587
(o) Shoet-lermn provisions 10 852,46 4177.90
W ASSETS e Sw%  _Teess
MHon-current asseis
1 (8} Fied assets
(il Tangble assets 11 18259.44 1736844
[} Intangibie assels 1 282.04 341,40
(i) Capinl work-in-progress 11 2058 50 216115
{n) Intangible assets undar development 1 143.03
(b} Non-current investments 12 1928.18 1981,78
[} Long-lerm lgans and acvances 13 A4992.78 360490
(d) Other non Gurment assels 14 816.19
2 Curreni assels
(o) Irveniories 15 25217.14 3003347
(b Trade mcovabies 16 1864312 18055 32
f{c) Cash and cash equvalonts 17 2488.76 561.32
(0 Shod-torm loans and advances 18 404517 422670
Total “B1874.35 79026.25
Significant Accounting Policies 28 Fl— e p—
MNoles on Accounis 27
SHOBHAMNA RAMACHANDHRAN As per our repor attached R MARESH
Managing Director For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN Expouiive Vice Chaimman
Charared Accounfants
Firm Ragistration No. 004207 5
K 5 NARAYANASWANMY
Place : Channal Partne P SRINIVASAN
Data ;| 32 52013 Mambership No. B533 Secrotary

[*]
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2013

{ Ra. In lakhs)
Nota No 41.3.2013 A B
I Revenue from operabions 19 147610.35 14003234
Il. Oiher income 20 4ITR.TE 58720
il Total Revenuea (1 + 1) 15198913 140920.54
IV, Expenses:
Cast ol materdals consumed 21 anroa 96721.59
Purchases of Traded goods 186.19 4086
Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress and
Stock-in-Trade 22 arsr. M (2406 59)
Ermpslontd Daevalil Gxiiisas 23 11299.65 9624 02
Firusnss cosis 2 571863 553010
Depreciation and amorization expanss 11 2421.99 207048
Other expenses 25 26717.38 23861.02
Total axpanses 14726234 135454 36
Profit before exceplional and extraordinary items and tax (111-1V) 4726.79 SATSE
Vi. Excoptional Nems .
Vil.  Profit belore exiraordinary items and tax (VY1) 4726.78 547518
Vili. Extrnordinary Hems . "
IX. Profit before tax (VII-VII) 4726.79 547518
X, Tax gxpense
(1) Current tax 494,83 1200.00
Less: MAT Credil Entitlomant 816,19 E
Met of MAT Cradil Enlitkemant 178.64 120000
f2) Dalermed Lax 980,41 300.00
Xl Profiv(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (1X-X) I56T. T4 T8
Xl  Proflit(oss) Fom doconiinuing opermions - *
X Tax exponse of discontinuing oparations d
XI¥. Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) (X11-XH1) - .
X¥.  Profit/{Loas) for the period (X1 + XIV) A567.74 JET3.10
XV Earnings par eguity sham:
(1) Basic 48.59 51.02
2) Diuted - -
Signiticant Accounting Policias 26
Notes on Accounts 27
SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAN As per our report attachad A NARESH
Managing Director For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN Expcutive Vice Chairman
Charfered Accouniants
Firm Registration No. 004207 S
K 5 NARAYANASWANMY
Place : Channai Partngs P SRINIWASAN
Data . 2252013 Membership No. B593 Secrory



TV IRICHANRA LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013

PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 32 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT As in lakhs
3323 332012
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Precelit ol ta ATI.TH S4TS 18
A AIrnar,
Deprecatan 2T 85 2O0TRA8
ERrRT e STIREY S50
rforeyd recmad {158 04) (TEAE)
Drvacianc) Racmwvn (2% 00§ 2% 00
Pl racmdeied {0, 1} 0.V B
Erolny Loss or 53 of Attaty (25LT.BE)
Prolil i ek Of st [1Ea8.43) .
dppmaty Dol Irar e
Ry QN O [y Ba ] (HE 20
T AR 62 S Takh 2%
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE Wil CAPTTAL CHANGES [T TS 43
Aglpstrrepnda b
Trace Focoraaies NII0 (1881 2%
Caad e alliiss (Va8 18] [ a8
e arieod (IERID )
Tronde sl o Srpiliss T T 30T
1084178 I @510 A7)
Cash Oarsrmes Froem Opermisng 1SSAESE TS0
Dirmct e paurd 41253 1344 37
MET CASH FLlrw FROM OPERATMG ACTIVWTIES ) ET 5 Tl T
i CASH FLOW FROM IMVESTING ACTNWITIES |
Purzhass of Fusd Asses (2TTLIT) (APEIL AT
Proceacds Mo dancisl 6 suiaty 529,83 .
T el 1200 00 (i
Denesrod pplpiemi 25.00 25.00
Mon oot Foore 2983 o 2e
Pyt recadeg=d (-8} (iR F ]
IriEress ipoosec 95 54 TE.15
NET CASH FLIPN FREOM BWVESTING ACTIVITIES B A0S PRLLE |
o B CASH FLDW FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES:
imres: cad {21 1.88) {8533 100
Peolpgdls (Magapyrment] hoem gt e Dorrowings {SXF2.21) 1 TR 40
Proceod |/ [Fepayrent] of omng e boncwibgs ST .03) {1 =
Lo 1 sulsaiary [3350.09) E
Lo grorn Fleoshd back 161220 {10120
{vicharacy & Divacheane Lan puse {TITLAE) [ARRE Hal
LT CASH FLEWY FIADA FRANCING ACTRTES i 184014 e0a 41
NET INCALASE [DECHEALE) 1 CASn AND CARH BOUNMENTE s B+5 anrT.a4 saar
Gl DY CAgM DOUSY ITE - OFraaG HALANCE 813 S13.25
O Ab CARN DOUBALERTTE - CLOSSW BALANCE 4468 10 8140
w_nmmmnmm A MARESH
Managing Direchor Exgcutive Vico Chaiman
Place : Chennai P SRINIVASAN
Date : 2252013 Secreiary
AUDITORS CERTIFICATE

We have examined the Casn Flow Statement of TVE Snchakra Limied lor the year enced 3151 March, 2013, The sistement has been
prapared by the Company in accordance with the requerements of Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement and ia based on and & in
agreernant with the correspondeg Steiersent of Profit and Loss and Balance Shoet of the Company by owr report dabed 22.5. 2013 o

s b CYine Lompany For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN
GHArEyeD heeonailsnrs

Frm Registraton Mo 000307 8

K 5 MARAYAMASWALY

Placs | Chenng Prrtngs
Date : 2252013 Mrreerates Mo Rt

[



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SHARE CAPITAL

Autharised
1.00.00.000 Equity Shares ol Rs_ 10 each

Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid Up:
76.57,050 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

Subscribed & Paid up
76,57,050 Equity Shares of As. 10 sach lully paid

Subscribed but not fully Paid up
Equity Shares ol Rs. 10 sach, not hully pald up.

Shares outstanding af the begnning of the year
Shares issuad dunng Ihe yoor

Shares boughl back during the year

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

Other Information :

Equity Shareholdors holdeng more than 5% of the iotal Share
capital ol tho Company

T ¥ Sundram iyangar & Sons Limited

Sundaram Industries Limited

Rights, preferences and restrictions altached to shares -

N.32013

As. In lakhs
41.3.2012

100000
T65.70

T65.70

TEETD

2T.73%
8.7%

Equity shares - Tha Company has ona class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- sach. Each sharehoider ia
gligible for one vola per share heid. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dsrectors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the enswuing Annual General Masting. except in case of internm dividend. Each shareholder also has a
resicdual interest in the assets of Ihe Company in proportion 1o thelr shareholding



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

As. in lakhs
31.3.2073 3132012

HOTE 2 - Reserves and Surplus

a. Capital Reserves

Opaning Balance 0.16 016
{+) Currant Yaar Transies - -
(-} Wiitior Back i Cunrant Yoas - ’
Closing Balance 0.16 Q.16

b. Socurtties Premium Account
Opening Balance 83.57 83.57

Add | Socurilis promium creddod on Sham Esue r
Less : Prormium Utilsod for vanious reasons -

Premium on Redemption of Debantures = "
For Issuing Bonus Shares I H
Closing Balance 83.57 83 57

c.  Other Reserves - Surplus on Amalgamation

Opaning Balance 46.24 46.24
[+ Curment Year Transier - =
i) Wintten Back in Cumreni Year ‘
Ciosing Balance —— e
4624 dE.24
d. Other Reserves - General Reserve
Opening Balance 2261.00 186100
[+ Current Yoar Transie 360,00 400,00
i) Witten Back in Current Year -
Clesing Balance 2621.00 2261.00
e. Surplus
Opening balance 10990,81 BE17 .02
{+) Net Profit / (Net Loas) For the curmont yoar I587.74 TS 18
(=) Proposad Dividend 574.28 1033.70
{-) Dividend Tax 97.60 16760
{-) Transter io Resarves 360.00 40000
Clasing Balance 1352667 106890 81
Tatal 16287 .64 13391.78




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.}

Rs. in lakhs
31.3.2013 322
NOTE 3 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Secured
{a) Term loans
from banks 10235.02 13063.00
from other parties 470.37 388 76
10705.40 13451.78
Unsecurod
{a) Long term maturities of finance lease obligations - ”
Total 10705.40 13451.76

Additional Information

Details ol Security lor Secured Loans

aj

b}

Term Loan availed rom Siate Bank of India is secured by hypothecation of Specified movable Plant & Machinery
localed at Company's Planl al Yellaripatii Village including 1 No.1250 KW Wind Electric Generator located at
Vadavali Vilage, Palladum Taluk, Coimbatore District.  Further the Term Loan from State Bank ol India is
secured by equitable mortgage by deposit of ithe deeds of 1.90 acres of land in Survey No.519/1B2, localad at
Marasingampaiti Village, Madural and lease hoid land located at Pant Nagar, Rudrapur, Uttrakhand

Term Loan rom Kane Vyasa Bank Lid., is secuned by hypolhecation of Specifc Plant & Machinery located al
Company's Plant atl Vellanpatti Village, Madurai,
Term Loan from Sundaram Finance Lid ., is secured by hypothecation of Specific Plant & Machinery located al

Pant Nagar, Rudrapur, Uttrakhand as woll as Specific Plant & Machinery located at Velanpatt Village,
Madurai.

d} Term Loan from DBS Bank = securad by hypothecation of Spechic Plant & Machinary locatod al Madurai
as well as specified mmovabla properties localad al Madurai
31.3.2013 31.3.3042
NOTE 4 - Deferred Tax Liability Assots
] Derterrad Tax Linbility
a) On Account of Depreciabon on Fixed Assets 235801 1352.11
b) On account of timing Differences in Recognition of Expenditure . .
i Deterrad Tax Asset
a) On account of kming Ditferences in Recognition of Expendlilure 81.08 5460
Total 227783 1297 42
NOTE 5 - Other Long Term Liabilities
(a) Trade Fayables 2 S
() Others 2B65.10 127418
Total 2865.10 1274.18




TVF FRICHAKRA ;n@:}-:'_—
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

NOTE 6 - Long Term Provisions
(@} Provision for employes benelils
Leave Encashment {unfunded)
(b} Othars
(¢} Provision for Taxation
Total
NOTE 7 - Short Term Borrowings
Secured
{a) Loans repayable on demand
from Banks
rom other partes
Totad

Additional Information :
g Detalsof Security for Secured Loans

31.32013

1152922

11652922

As. In lakhs
J13anz

16851.43

16851.43

Working Capetal faciities availed rom State Bank of India are secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation of
Siock of Raw Matorials, Stores, Work in Progress, Finished goods and Book Daibits.

NOTE 8 - Trade Payables
1} To Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
i} Others

Total
NOTE 8 - Other Current Liabilities
(n} Currénl maturiies of long-lerm ebl
by Current matunites of finance leass obligations
() Interest accrued but not due on Borowings
gy Unpad dividends
Total

MOTE 10 - Shart Torm Provisions

(a) Provision for employee benefits
Salary & Rinmbursamonts
Contribution 10 PF
Leeave gricasihrmsnt

Gratuity (Funded)
(b} Others - Dther Credilors
(e} Provisions
Taxation Less Achvancs Tax
Dvvidend
Diviclend Tax
Tatal

INTTB26
377826

1063.17

41259
110.23
1585.54

36.74
23.16
139.90

624.30
574.28
97.60

3B52.46

448.87

16.31
17.E

21548 851

41.99
1003.70
167.60

4117.90
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

NOTE 13- Long Term Loans and Advancos

& Capital Advances
Securnd, consadonad good
Unsacuned, considenad good
Dowsbtiul
Leas: Provision for doubtiul acvances

b. Security Deposits
Secured, considened good
Unsacured, comsidered good

. Loans and sdvances to relafed parties
Secured, consddened good
Unsscuned, considersd pood

d. Other lcans and advances
Securnd, consadonad good
Unsacured, considered good

NHOTE 14 - Other Mon Current Assats
MAT Crocit Enttiarmiant

HOTE 15 - Invenlorios As certilied by Managing Direcior

. Raw Matordals and components al cost
b. Work-in-progress at cost

c. Finished goods sl lower of cost and realizable value

d. Slock-in-trade at cos

g, Stores and spares al cost
I Loose Tools

g. Othars

31.3.2013

436.74
A36.74
Toted 4992.78

B16.1%
Toand B16.18

17130.42
2009 .67
5395.01

Total 2531714

Rs. In lakhs
313202

3055.08

3055.08

2720
227.20

4327
1271
3854 5909

18244 44
3145
8i07.73

15.50



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

As. In lakhs
332013 3132012
NOTE 16 - Trade Receivables
Trade recoivables outstanding lor a patiod loss than six =
manihis from the date they ane due e payment
Unsecured, considensd good 18377.21 18578 48
1837721 18528 .48
Trade receivables ocutstanding for a period excesading six
manths from the Gabe thoy ane dud for paymant . .
Unsecurad, conamdenad good 26591 425 84
Unsecurad, considerad Doubtful 34.54 H
Less: Provision for Doubtiul {34.54) )
265.91 426 84
Total 18643.12 18955 32
NOTE 17 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
i Balances with banks
= In Unpaid Dnidend Accounts 110.43 80.18
= In Margin money B54.66 217.30
« I Deposits socouns with Maturty of less than 3 S000.00 1
month from the Batance Sheet date
« In Deposits accounts with Mahuity of more than 12 4.44
months frpm the Balance Sheet dabe
- In Current Acoounts 504.72 25395
b. Cheques drafts on hand -
c Cash on hand 14.51 8.88
d.  Others
Total 4488.76 561.32
NOTE 18 - Short Term Loans and Advances
a. Loans and advances to related parties
Unsscured. considerad good 25.88 101220
25.88 1012.20
b. Others
Unsecured, considensd good 4019.29 3214.50
4018.29 3214 .50
Total 404517 420670




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

NOTE 19 - Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Other operating revenues
Loss: Exciso Duty

NOTE 20 - Other Income

imerest IncOm - Current Invesiments
Dividend Income - Long Ternm Imesiments
Frofit on Sale of Fed Assets | Nel)
Exchangs Rato Gain & Loss
Profit on Sake of Invesimaonts
Other non-operating income
{nat ol expenses directly atinbuiable o such ncome)
Towl

HOTE 21 - Cost of Materials Consumed

Dpening Stock
Add: Purchase (inciudes procesging charges Re. 2151 33 lakhs])
{Provious year Rs_ 184841 lakhs)

Less: Closing Stock
Cost of Materials consumed Totad

MNOTE 22 - (Increase) / Decrease in Slock

Dpening Stock Finished goods & Traded goods
Dpening Stock Work in progress

Closing Stock of Finished goods & Traded Goods
Closing Siock of Work in progress

(increase) / Decrease in Finished goods & Traded Goods
{increase) / Decrease in Work in progress

Total (increase) | Decrease in Stock Total

31.3.2013

158608.76
516.50
1251481

147610.35

158.88
25.00
2547.86
471.09
1146.42

4378.78

18244 .44

96056.79

114301.23
17130.42

g7170.81

B123.23
31451
5491.06
2009.67
283217
1135.54

J767.71

As. In lakhs
I A3202

150334 42
T21.15
1072823

140332.34

88.78
25.00

44717

36.24
597.20

17185.26

aTTe0. 77
1718540800
FE244 44

967T21.59

BE34.30
227 46
B1z3.23
J145.21
{1288 84)
[1117.75)

{2406 59)

[&1]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd |

Rs. in lakhs
31.3.2013 N3z
M. 16.51 7714
o Skt it v B316.5 TBTT.
{b) Conirbutions fo -
il Superannuation Fund 68.00 7339
fif} Gmh.:qr furid contnbuticns 138.80 17115
(i) Provident Fund 501.95 471.28
€l Remunesation 1o Whole Sme direciors 118.88 28017
{d) Stafl weltare expenses 106441 941,89
Total 11299.65 9634 (2
NOTE 24 - Finance Cosls
Interest axponse 536345 913453
Crnaw DOFTTwINg Costs 355.18 358.57
Total 5T18.63 5533.10
HOTE 25 - Other Expenses
Consumption of Stores & Spares 3646 .86 3404.70
Power & Fuel 642113 5005.35
Repairs to building 38737 261.26
Raopairs o machnory 446 52 Z18.10
Rapairs Dihers 50,23 116.56
Insurance 229.43 21843
Rales & taxps 260.48 188.26
Teleptone & Intemet Charges 85.74 817
Traveling Expensa 636 54 57744
Biminess Promobon 139420 1003.23
Frisght Ount A269.91 3852 .51
Bad Debits written off 5.50 7.50
Provision lor doubthul debis 3454 .
Assats condemned 2rar 5.2
Ramunaradion 1o non Whols tma directors - Commission 12.04 840
Commission & Descount 541359 5965 68
Aant & Loase rantaks 638.04 628.18
Audil Fees g.a30 9.05
Donation 2.39 268
Consultancy 1992.53 BOS.81
Warranty Claims 459158 28377
Dihes sxpenses 251.27 168.00
Tobad LAl 2000192

2]



26. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

T.

AS 1: Disclosure of accounting policies:

Tha financial slalements ara prepared on a going concorn concapl undes the histoncal cost comention on accnual
bas:s and in accordancs with tha reguirements of the Companies Act, 1956 and afler considenng the mandatory
accounting standards issued by the Instiule of Charered Accountants of India

AS 2: Valuation of invenlories:

Raw Materials, slores and spases are valued at cost arved by applying the Weighted Average Method. Cost
consists of cost of materals, CESS, Duty & Freight.

Work in progress is valued at cost applying Weighted Average Method. Cost includes cost of Materials, Labour
andother appropriate overheads.

Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and realizable value.  Cost for this purpose comprises matenals. labour
and other pppropriate overheads and Excise Duty.

AS 2: Cash Now stalemants:

Pursuant (o e listing agreomant with the Siock Exchanges, the Company has altached cash flow stalement (o the
Balance Sheet and Statermoent of Profit and Loss. The Cash fiow statement s preparsd under Indinect mathod,

AS 6: Depreciation accounting:

| All assets are depreciated on Straight Ling Method at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Companies
Act, 1956,

i. Depreciationisprovided for on pro-rata basis on addiions and deletions made during the year, Assets costing
Rs S000 - and bestonw ade depreciated i full,

AS 9: Revenue Recognition:

Incoma ol ihe Company & dervved rom sale of manulactured goods and inciudes Excise Duty and s net of sales
redurns and rade dracounts  Domoshc sakes arg recognized on the Dass of sales invosci raised. Expont sales ame
recognized on the basss of date of bilks ol lading. Export benefits, f any, are recognized on post shipment basis.

Intofest iInCoOMmes‘expanses are recognized using the time proportion method based on the rates impbcit n the
transaction. Deadend incormes is recognisd whan tha right to recenve diidend is established,

AS 10: Accounting for fixed aasets:

Gross block of fixed assels are shown al the costs of acquisition, which includes taxes, duties (nat of
CEMVAT and VAT input credits availed) and other identifable direct expenses incurred.

AS 11: Accounting for effects in foreign exchange rates:

Transactions are accounted at equivaler] rupee values al the agreed forwand contract rates. The differsnce on
account of fuctuation al the rale of exchange prevailing on tha date of transactan and he date of realizabon is
irealed as revenue,

E



FVF TRICHANRA LIMITED

26. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)

Foreign curency assets and kabiltes are restated at the rates ruling at the year and and tha difference recognized
in the Profit and Loss Account,

B.  AS13: Accounting for Investments:

AR he irasiments are long term mvestimants. Diminubion 0 respact of long ferm investments are provided for
whon hird & 8 parmanent ciminution 0 th value of such nvestmionis.

Investments are stated at cost. In respect of investments where the realizable vakee 1S less than cost, lowes value
has been adopied

8.  AS15(revised): Accounting for retirement benefits:

The Company prowooes for graluity, a defined benof! rotiremant plan, covenng  eligible  employees. In
pecordanca wilh the prowtions of the Payment of Gratuity At 1872, the Company provides & kemp-gum
paymani to vested employees al retirement, death, incapacitation of termination of employment. of an amount
based on the empioyees’ salary and tenure of employment. Liabilibes with regard to the retirement plan ane
cslerminsd by an independent actuaral valustion at the Balance Sheet date, based on which the Company
contributes all the ascestaned labiktes 1o the Company's gratuity fund.

Lesve encashment @ pioded for based on actuanal valusbon

Employoés above a cortain category are partiopants in the Compamy's Superannuation Fund, lor which the
Company makes annual contnbutions based on their salaries and lanure of employment fo a fund mamtaned by
the Life Insurance Corporation of india.

The company makes s stalutory contribution to the Empioyees’ Provident Fund 10 the Employess’ Provident
Fund OnganczaBion of the Gowernment of India

The Company makes contribution to the employees’ haalth schemes for those employees governed by the ES1 Act.

The Company has adopled the revised accounting standard on employees benefit (AS-15, revised) ssued by the
ingtitute of Chanered Accountants af Indlia,

Reconciabion ol opening and closing balances of the prosent value of the definpd benelil cbligation:

(As. in Lakhs)
LEAVE ENCASHMENT
Particulars 31.32.2013 N0z
Obliganons Bl pandd Deginning 164.74 135,21
Sanvice Cost 120,65 51.05
Inerest cosl 9.98 B.E3
Actuanal (gaen) doss 42.09 ar.17
Benetits paid (87.55) (67.32)
Amendmant in banafit plana - -
Obdigations at the perod end 29991 164.74




26. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)

(A=, In Lakhs)

GRATUITY
Particularns 31.3.2013 31.3.2012
Otibgations at perod baginning 982.64 77811
Sorvice Coal 158,67 167.04
Intenest cobt 78.23 65.10
Actuarial (gain)/loss (1.81) (2.18)
Benefits paid (44.37) {26 43)
Amendment in benefil plans - -
Cbbgations al the poncd end 1174.26 962 64

GRATUITY
Change in plan nssels 31.3.2013 332012
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 811.49 701.10
Expected return on the plan assets 69.99 58.18
Actuanal gan/{loss) 26.10 013
Contributions 171.15 78.00
Benefis pad (44.37) (26.43)
Difference in Opening Batance - 048
Plan assets at the year end, fair valus 103438 B11.48

Reconciiation of the defined plan obligations and fair vilue of plan assats at the yaar encd

Fair value of tha plan assets al the year beginning

117426

Dofined plan oblgatons at tha yaar and

1034 36

Anspis(knbdiies) recognired in i Profit and Loss Accourd dunng the yoar | 138,80

Assumptions.: Gratuity Leave Encashment
interest Aate 825% B.50%
Discount Factor B.25% B 507
Estimated Return on Plan Assats B.00%

Salary Increase 6.00% 6.00%
Antirition Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Ratirernent Age 58 & 80 58 & 60
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TV IRICHANRA LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd )

{Rs. In Lakhs)
GRATUITY
Gratuity Cost: 31.3.2013 3132012
Sarvice Cosl 158.67 167.04
Interest Cost 79.23 65.10
Expected refurm on plan assels (68,99 (58.19)
Actuarial (gains) / losses {28.01) 2.31)
Difterence in Opening Balance - i0.Aaa)
Met gratuity cost 139.90 171,18

irvastmani delaits of plan assols:

The Company confributes the liability as par actuarial valustion 1o the Company's gratuity fund manages, ICICI
Prudential L e Induranca Co. Lin.

AS 16: Borrowing Cost:

Intgrasts on bormowings are capitalized where ever there is substantial pericd of tima between tha dale of
borrowing and dale on which tho assets ane put to usa.

AS 17 Segment reporiing:

The Company operales only in one segmant and hance the dsclosure requirements ol Accounting
Standard on Segment reporting { AS 17) issved by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are not

appkcable.

AS 19! Leases:

The Company has taken certan Plant @nd Equipments under operating lease.

The lease panod @ or 10 yoars,

The details of matuity profile of futuse operatng isase payments are furnshed below:

B The folal of fubwo mnimum loase poymonts unded non-cancollable operating lease for each of the

foliowing pariods (Nat): R inLakns
= Mot later than one year 108628
- Latat than ona yoar and nol later than five yoars 390042
- Lter than five years 3535.M1

b.  Total of minimum Sub-lease payments expectad 10 be recenved under non-cancallable sub-leases at the
Balance Sheet date Nol Apphcabis

¢. Loase payments recognised in tha Statement of Profit and Loas for the year under the head rent Paid
Rs. 5.93 Lakhs
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd )

AS 20: Earnings per shara:

Basic sarnings ped shara are disclosed in tha Profl and Loss Account. Thare is no diluted saming per share as
Thene are no dduthve polental equity shares

AS IZ: Accounling for laxos on income:

The Company provides for current taxes al current rates under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1962,
Disputed taxes are not providad for, but disclosed in the notes on accounts,  The Company provides for
deferred lax arsing on accoutt of temporary and reversible timing differences on account of depréecaton,
employees benelits and expendilure which are allowed under the income Tax ACtonlyon payment basss,

AS 25: Interim financial reporting:

Ouartorty resulls are publshed in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Securitres and Exchange Board
ofindia. The recognition and measuremant principles as lad down in the standard are followed with respect to
such resufts. Quanady Snancial results are also subjected 1o a limiled inancial roview by the Auditors as
rescpLred

AS 26 Intangible Assels:

The Company capdalizes non infegral software as intangible assets, The |ntangible assets are
depreciated at the mtes apphcabils to computers in Schedule XIV ol the Companies’ Act, 1956 under the
Straight Line Method.

AS 28 Impairment of Assets:

The Company makes an assessment on the Balance Sheet date to determine whathar there is any indecation ol
impairment in the carrying amount of the Companys fixed assets. if any such indication exisis. the
recoverabie amounts are estimated and an impaiement ioss is recognized whenever the camying amount of an
asset exceads ils recoverable amount.

AS 20: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

a) Provisions for expenses are made on estimated basis, basad upon the judgment of the Company.
b} Contingen! Linbilities are not provided for but disciosed in the notes on accounts.

) Thareane no conBngont assels.

{As. in Lakhs)
Contingent katxtes: 31.3.2013 31.3.2012
Balarco a! the beginning ol the year 12648.47 424452
Additions /{ Deletions) during the year (7644.43) 840395
Balance al the end of the year 5004.04 12648 47
Lishiities disputed and not provioed for: Sales Tax & Excise 332013 3aamz2
Balance at the boginning of the year 204.79 19316
Addgibons /{ Deletions) during the year 10.46 1163
Balance al the end of the year 21525 204.79




b}

c)

i)

TV FRICHANRA LIMITED

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

The Company vilue Faw maderials, Waork in progress, Stores & Spares by applying weighted average price
method. Inrespect of Raw materials, Cost consists of Material cost, CESS. Duthas & Freight. In respect of Work
ifi progiess cosl oonsst of Malerial cost. Labaur and othear appropiiale overlmats

The Company manutaciures and salis Two whaaler, Three whealar, Industripl, Agricultural and Farm Tyres as well
as Knobs for direci applicafion

Tha rmaien R Mateonal in the produclion ang as fofliows

#) Natural Rubber b} CarbonBlack c¢) SyntheticRubber d) Butyl Rubber e} Chemical & Ois f} Baad wire
gl Vahos

mmmmm.mmmwmmmmhmmwlumwm
company — TVS Srchakra Investmants Limided. The following transactions hava bean entered into during the

year.
I}  Anadvance of Rs 20 Cr paid in an earlier year for scquiring a property  has been transferred to a wholly
owned subsidiary Company during the year

) During the year, the Company has transferred 5 lacs shares of Rs. 10 sach in ZF Electronics TVS ( india)
Private Limited. for a consideration of Rs. 12 Crores based upon an independent Valuation report. This has
resulied in a Prolt on sale of investmant of As. 11.47 Crores.

i A sum of Rs33.53 Crores s oulstanding from this wholly owned subsiciary al the and ol the accounting
yoar

As. in lakhs

CIF Value of lmports 31.3.2013 31322
1 HRaw Matanals JETE1.90 A5844 07
2 Spoares 18.02 .
3 Capital Goods 316.66 140.79
4  Traded Goods . 3
5 Softwar -
Consumpton of imporad mnd indgenoLs
raw materials and components

S %
1 Iimparted 3’11 33361.08 26.18 2483425
2  Indigenous Bd.80 61658.40 73.a2 70038 93
Consumpton of imported and
indigenous Stores and Spares 0 %
1 imported . . 0.29 9.80
2 Indigenous 100.00 3646 86 99.71 3394 .99
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

Earnings in foreign exchange
1 FO.B. value of goods exponed
2 intoresi

Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency on
1 Consultancy

2 Interes!

3 Other Maners

Rermunemtion to Managing Director
1 Salaries & Allowances
Commission
Contribution 1o Provident & Other Funds

. Remuneration 10 Executive Vice Chairman:
. His

1. Interest Capitaksed
2. Interest paid includes Interest on Fixed Loans

Tax deductind at Sousca from Interast

Stores and Spares consuméed includes consumplion
lowards ropans and maintenance of Plant & Machinery

Dataily of the Audit Feos

Paymenis 0 mudions

for mudit lees

lof taxation matiers

for Certbcation

for income Tax

for rembursemant of expanses

PoP TR

31.3.2013

19694.96
42.50

#4469
1004.97

70.70

11.24

140.00
1184.77

798

T.00
0.45
1.25
0.10
0.50

As. in lakhs
3132012

17006 .40
25.89

478560
21024
131.76

8559
116.79
.08

11679

151229

740

185603

7.00
0.45
1.00
0.10
0.50

Profit on sale ol Assets included under the haad other income includes sala ol machinarios the book value
of which is Rs. 2883 lakhs, sold for a conssderation of As. 5530 lakha based on independent waluation

obtsinad
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o) Details of Research and Developmant Expenditune:

L}

(i

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

Capital Expenditune:

a) Piant & Machinary

b} Electrical Installations

¢} Vehicles

dy Computers

o) Furmitune

N Buidings

g} Capital work in progress (P & M)

aj Row Malorials consumed
b} Siores & Spares consurmed
c] Salares Wages, Bonus and Allowances

o} Ront including loasa roenals
fj Rates & Tases

i Travolng exponses

i} Repairs & Mantsnance
i Consultancy

k) Others

3132013

229.32
1.85
a.48
0.73

5.20

Total 241.88

163.98
18.50
278.36
19.26
704
12.41
0.78
88.24
100.66

152.91
Total 1186.01

Total 1427.69

Rs. in lakhs

31322

8.34
.11
8.3
13.5
T

167.37

4T7.10

231.14

142,30

111023



27 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

31.3.2013
Condingent Liabdities niod provided for:
aj Estimaled amount of contracts remaining 1057.05
to be execuled on capital account
b} On Lefters of Credit openad by Company's Bankers 380139
g} Exciso Duty under Despute 20213
dl  Sales Tax undar Dispute 13.12
g) Customs duty on goods fying al Bondad Warehouse 145.60

Guarantos ghaan W0 Dank for loan taken by 5 sulsdiany =
(GEP B10000)

Rs. in lakhs

1.3.2012

2423 68

188,67

14.12

smae2

40264

information pursuant 1o clause 4 (x) (b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 in respact of dues
disputed, nol deposded, pending with vanous authoribies:

As. in lakhs

Forum where dispute is Pending Excise Duty Sales Tax
High Court

Customs, Excisg and Service Tax Appallate Tribunal 158.00

Commissioner of Cantral Excise 2.83

Oy Commissioner of Canlral Exsa 17.45

Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise 2385 -
Appedata Tnounal h 0.1
Assessing Officer 1291
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27 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

r} DISCLOSURE DN RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS (AS 18)
Descripion of retabionship and Names of related parties

1. Subsichanes TS Snchakra Irvestmenis Lid.,
TVS Europe Distributhon Lid,
2. AssoCisies TWS Sundram lyengar & Sons Limited

TS Telecom Componants Limited
ZF Elpctronics TVS (India) P Lig
Van Leeuwen Tyres & Wheals, B, Holland

Sri A Naresh, Exocutive Vice Chairman
Ms Shobhana Ramachandhran, Managing Director

3. Koy Management Personned

4. Enpepiine with Common Ky Sundaram ncustrias Limited
Rs. In Lakhs
SI. Key Entorprise with
Personnel Managemeni Personnel
A Transactions for the year
ended 31.3.2013
1 Purchases . 102.46 338.48
{168 24) {74.0M
2 Sales BRSO3 221.14
(B334.26) 3 (90.32)
3 | interest Paid [145.37) *
L] Intorast Recened a7 B9 " 15.60
(26.89) :
B Services rendered 402 51 0.96
7 (583.77) [21.20)
] Sanices recenad 101.81 133.94 8.15
(1.348) (68.82) (301.15) 11.90)
[ Loans Accepied |/ Repaid . .
{ 1500.00§
8 | Looana Ghen .
(1012.20)
9 | Loans Repaid 1012.20
10 | Investmanis "
(1720.72)
i1 sale of Investiments 1200.00
12 | Advance 335309
B | Outstanding as on 31.3.2013 '
1 Recenable Jara.42 800.58 2657
(845, 56,
2 Payabie "me_m], Fﬂ 48.18 (5620
(233 .58)

Fgures in brackets e B of previous yes:



27 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (Contd.)

s

uj

w)

Rs.in lakhs

31.2.2013 Iaamz
Trade Payables and Shor Termn Prowisions include:
a) Acceptances 11666.30 8968 .65
b) Due to Managing Direcior 24.09 1678
£} Dua io Execulre Vice Chairman 24.09 116.79
dl  Duee to Non-whole trme Dirpclorns 12.04 S840
Mo amount is due as on 3151 March, 2013 for credit to investor Education and Protection Fund
Details of Eamings Per Shae
Prafit aftor tas Rs. In Lakhs 3567.74 JmTs.8
Mo. of equity shares Nos TB57050 TEST0S0
Face value ol share Rs 10.00 10.00
Basic Eamings per share A= 46.59 5192

Terms ol repayment of Term Loan

1. Term loan from 581 V is ropayabie in 68 monthly installmants commaencing from Odatobar 2010 (with a
maratonum of 8 months)

2. Term loan trom EVE ks repayabla in 72 monthiy mstalments commeancnig from Oclober 2011
3. HPLoan from Sundaram Finanos Lid | i repayable in monthly mstaliments commencing from January 2010

4. ECB Loan from DBS Bank is repayable in 20 Guantery Instalment ot the and of 27 months from the 1s
drawedown [wilh a moralonum of 2 years)

5 Term loan from DBS Bank is repayable in 16 quanedy nstaliments af the end of 15 months from the 1st
dramediown

An amouni of Rs. 750 per share has been approved by the Board of Directomn towards dihidend.

SHOBFANA RAMACHANDHRAN As per our report attached R NARESH
Maraging Dvecior For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN Exacutive Vice Ghairman

Chamersd Accountants

Firm Ragistration No. 004207 §

K 5 MARAYANASWAMY P SHINIVASAN
Piace :Chennal Paringr Secretary
Date : 225 13 M No B583
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.3.2013



TV IRICHANRA LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED

We have audied the accompanying consolidated
financial staternents of TvS SRICHAKAA LIMITED (“the
Company” and its subsidinres. which comprise tha
consolidated Balance Sheet as at Manch 31, 2013, and
the consolidaled Stalemant of Profit and Loss and the
consolidated Cash Flow Siatement lor the year then

ended, and a summary of significant socounting

Mansgemants Responsibilty for the Consolidated
Financial Siatements

Managemeani s responsible for the prepambon of these
consolidated inancipl sialements thal give & trua ang
fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance and consolidatea
cash fiows of the Company in accordance with

accounting principles gendrally nocepted in india. This
responsibiity includes the design, implementation and
mainienance ol inlermal control relevant to. the

preparabion and preseniallon of the consolidated
financial siaterments thal give a tua and fair vwew and
are fréa rom malenal misslatement, whalher dué 1o
Frowud or ermor.

Augitor's Responsitilty

Our responsibility in 1o express an opion on thosa
consolidated Enancip! stalements based on owr audit
We conducied ouwr audil in Booordance with the
Standards on Audiing ssusd by the Instiute of
Chantered Accountanis of India. Those Standards
require that we comiply with ethical requirements and
plan and parform the audt o oblain reasonable

assurance aboul whelhed the consolidaled fnancial
staternents are free from malerial misstatemeant.

A Akt vl paciorming procadunes Lo obtain audil
ovidance about ™he amounts and disciosures in the
consolidated Bnancial statemants. The procedures
selected depend on  the auditor's judgment. including
the assesarnent of the risks of malonal msstalemant of
thi congodialod Fnmancial stalémants, whathar Gud 10
frawd o error. In making (hoso risk assessmants. tha
auditor considers inlemal control relevant 1o the
Companys preparation and presentation of the
consolidaled financial stalements thal ghvwe a rua and
foir viaw in order 10 désign audit procedures thal ane
appropreale n e circumeslances. An auda  also
inciudes evaluatng the appropriatensss of accountng
policies used and the reasonableness of the
BECOUNng esimales mads by manadgemant, a5 wall as
ivaliatng the overoll presentabion of the consohdatod
financial sialements.

W believe that the audd evidence we have obiained is
sufficient and appropniate o provide & bass lor our

audit opimion.
Opinion

I owr opinkon and o tha best of our whormalon and
accordng to the explanations gven 0 us, he
consolidated financial statemnmant give the informaton
required by the Company Act, 1956 in the manner 30
required and give a true &nd fair view in conformity with
the accounting prnciples genarally accepied in india:



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Contd)

a) Inthe case of the consolidated Balance Sheet. of the state of aftairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;

B} Inthe casa of the consolidalad Siatement of Prodit and Loss of the profit for tha year ended on that date; and

¢} Inthe case ol the consolidated Cash Flow Statoment, of the cash flows for the year anded on that date.

Othar Matiors

Wa did not audi the fnancial Statemenis of the subsidiaries Vie. TVS Srichakra Investments Limited and TVS Eurcpe
Destributeon Limited, Unted Kingdom. Thasa finandal statements and other hinandcal informabon ol ths subsaharkss
have heen audited by otter auditons. We have relied upon the awdit reports of these Companies, which have been

furishad 1o us, and our opinion, in 5o far it relates to the amounts included in reapect of hoese subsidiares s based
sOhaly on the At repors of tha oIner auditors,

O opinkon ks nol qualified in respect of othar mattars

For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN
Chartersd Accouriants
Firm Ragistration No. 004207 S

K S NARAYANASWAMY
Place | Chenna Partner
Date : 22 52013 Membership No. 008593



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2013

{ As. in Lakhs)
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Maota No 21.3.2013 3132012
1 Shareholders’ funds
(8) Share capital 1 T65.70 TES. 70
(b} Rosendas and suiplus 2 15361.66 13345, 64
(c) Money recened agains! share wamants - _
2 Share application money ponding allotmant =
3 Minority Interest 2233.99 G0 30
4  Hon-curren liabilities
(@) Long-lorm borrcwings 3 15616.31 1345176
b} Doferned lox labdities (Met) 4 2283.90 130225
{c) Omer Long term habilities 5 3237.09 1638.12
{d) Long-term proviskons & 226.75 148.42
5 Currenl llabilities
{a) Short-term bomowings 7 11961.50 23145.38
(b) Trade payables 8 35751.05 27724 54
(¢} Other current iabilibes 9 2834.30 374037
{d) Short-tormn provesions 10 3964.56 5221.40
il ASSETS TOTAL B4235.81 S1088.93
1 Non-current assels
{a) Fixed assets
I Tangible assets 1" 20560.65 17478.05
(4] Intangible azsels 1 T277.02 TEE.Ta
) Capilal work-n-progress 1" 2058.50 2183.15
(W) Intangible assets undar development 11 143.03 .
(B Non-curment vestments 12 56.04 11504
€} Long-term oans and advances 13 1639.609 383077
(i Oiher Mon Currani Assets 14 B16.18
2 Cummeni assets
() FrEnioe s 15 Z28982.07 6835
) Trade recervablos 16 22680.27 22548 .13
fc}  Cash and cash squivalonts 17 4648.85 111229
(@) Short-tenn loans and advances 8 447T2.50 16238
Significant Accounting Policies TOTAL 25 84235.81 91088 599
MNoles on ACcounts 2T
SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHRAMN AZ piBr our report attachead A MARESH
Managing Director For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN Exaculive Vice Chairman
Charared Accountants
Firm Ragistraticn No. 004207 5
K 5 HARAYANASWAMY
Place - Chennai Partrier P SRINGVASAN
Date : 22 52013 Membership No. 8583 Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31ST MARCH, 2013 (Rs. in Lakhy)
Mole No. 31.3.2012 31320012
I Ravanus from operations 19 165193.84 145348 54
. Othd incomme 20 3151.42 539.85
L Total Revenuae (1 + i) 168345.28 145888 39
W Expenses;
Cost ol materials consumed 21 87170.81 BET21.59
Purchases of Traded goods 12595.38 655471
Changes in inventones of finished goods work-in-progress and
Stock-in-Trade =z 323896 (S542.TT)
Empioyoee benalil exponses &= 13079.94 1018466
Financs cosis o4 6F22.45 sM7an
Dopreciabon and emomisaton exparse 11 2480.52 2270.51
nher ezpenses 25 29077.57 244331
Total expenses 183865.563 1405380 02
v Profit before exceptional and extraordinary lems and tax (I11-IV) 447T9.63 549937
Vi, Exceplional ilems - Reversal ol amoriization of goodwill 178.36 -
Vil. Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) 4657.98 9997
Vill, Extraoedinary ltems . 5
iX. Profit before tax (Vil- Vili) 465T .90 5400 .37
X Tax enpenss
(1) Current ta 1211.10 '
Less: MAT Credit Entitlemend 816.19 4
Nat of MAT Credil Entiiemant 3949 1257.19
(2) Delerred tax Dan.41 30493
X1 Profit/{Loss) for the period from continuing operations (1X-X) 3282.67 3037 25
Minority Interest 583.55 1862

X Prolit/loss) from discontinuing operations .
X Tax expenss of Guoontinuing operaions - =
Profit'(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) (X=X} . -

X
XV Profit/(Loss) for the period (X1 + XIV) 271812 301863
XV Earmingn por equity shan:
(1) Bassc 3551 81,18
{2) Diluted - _
Significant Accounting Policias 20
Mobis on ACCoUntS 2T
SHOBHAMA RAMACHANDHRAN Az par our report aftached A NARESH
Managing Director For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN Executive Vice Chalrman
Charared Acoouniants
Firm Ragistration No. 004207 5
E 5 NARAYAMASWANY
Place = Chenna Partnet P SRINIVASAN
Date : 2252013 Mambership No. B50.3 Secretany



TV FRICHANRA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2013

PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 32 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

Re. in Lakhs

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: i s

Hﬁﬂmw-ﬁmm L4TRE] ST IT

mh

Desrwiammlan 480 52 ST

Frarce Cosh 82T A% STIT.3H

bt e {1.20.68) [T 15)

Devaborih Paac prebct [35.00) {25.00)

IFirst ppmse 0.1} (iR 11]

Merosey Share of Profn {561 55) [RLBTY

Badpairmed e rengn astwarge resre 30 D) 137

Prowion o Gmimtion of ivstmenis L] -

[Prgfin L o S oF Aaaeds RST.) B

et Croncorrosn aar Hae

Han cosraing incoma _@esa) _ltazm, i

OPERATING PROFIT BEFTORE WORSING CAPTTAL CHANGES 52,02 1\

Acharstrimries, foe

Trads Rocmyabies {1 30U0E) 515537

Crieer Racmivabies (ITET.EZ) (2 e

[ 2, 418T. I8 (B, )

Trmate s Dffer paryabies e $999.34 ToTRAn 4985 34

Cash Gararmeg From Cpeimnong 180228 sAN0L0a

Dhreci fasse fasd M7 44 43

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTRATIES (1] _‘!&E EelebE 38

Extracsenary & FuCaphnng Bame 1TH.38

NET CASH FLOW FROL OPCRATIMNG ACTIWTIEES (A 1067318 0S8
8. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Porchese of Fooerd Asots (a2 G} L1652 B

Procesds from daposs of 4558 550566 -

Drancimr] recosemsd 000 500

Lo i e ] 53 103

Aeret vecp vt o.re os

Irdgrast meaneRd T84 T8 15

WET CASH FLOW FROM BOVESTING ACTIITIES il 789,53 (15410100
C. CASHFLDW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Fnance Cosl {SAIT. T Lrab il

irreate o Wironty soaty 10

Procesds | Fapeymant) mom short tem horrowings (991 ELAA) ROTH.43

Peocoecis (Megarprmen] of ioeng e hosiosinga AR E575. 32

Deracierct & Degoclons las peeed [HITE. 18} 171 E DRy

T Cadps PO Iveins Fasasaleal ACTRWITIES ] [1am3f.15) Mi0.a%

NET IMCRCASL [DLCINCASEY W CASH AND CARF EOUNALEMTE ¢ + B0 353758 A50 T

Clliei AMEY CASH EOLALENTS - DFRatell BALANCE 111828 5T Sl

A Ay CanE DO PRy FRTH - CLORG BALANER S84 85 e
SHOBHANA RAMACHANDHAAN R MARESH
Managing Direchor Exacuttye Vice Chairman
Place : Chennai P SHINIVASAN
Data ; 22 52013 Sacretary

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE

We lawe sasrninad he conadildaled Cass Fiow Simemenital TVE SAchakra Laniisd e Ms yedr sicked J0el Waich, 207 The slalemeed Fuii B
praparna by tha Company in sscoriancn wEh iha ecgurarsents of Cinsae 32 of ire Listng Agresrsmt and s Dased on and (8 0 sgresmant with S
creresponding Siatsmerd of Prof and Loss snd) Balsroe Shees) of e Company by our repar datsd 73 8 50130 the merniers ol Bie Carmperny

For SUNDARAM & SRIMNIVASAMN
Charterer! dTouriards

Place | Channas
Date ;

25203

Frm Regraraticn P QDLI0T §

K S NARAYANASWAMY
Pt
MarDarnip N B5E0



CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SHARE CAPITAL

RAs. in Lakhs
31.3.2013 MN.52012
Authorised
1.00.00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1000.00 100000
Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid Up:
78.57.050 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 sach TES5.70 TE65.70
Subscribed & Paid up
78.57.050 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 765.70 TES.70
Subscribed but not fully Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 oach nof fully paid up -
Total 765.70 TES.T0
Equity Shares
NO.'000 As. in lakhs
Shares outstanding af the beginning of the year TBET.0O5 TES.TD
Shares Issued during the year . -
Shares bought back dunng the yaar = -
Shares ouistanding af the end of the year TEST.O5 TES.TO
Other Informalion :
Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total Share capital
ol the Company
T ¥V Sundram lyengar & Sons Limiled 27.TI% T TI%
Sundaram Industries Limited 9.79% 9.79%

Rights, preferencia and resinciions alinchaed o sharos -

Equity shares - The Company has ong class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- sach. Each shareholder is
efigible for one vole per share heid. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors i subject 1o the approval of the
sharaholders in the ensuing Annual General Maeling, excepl in case of intenm dividend. Each sharaholder also has a
resicual interest in the assets ol the Compamy in proporiion o thelr Shareholding.



CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

RAs. In lakhs
NOTE 2 - Reserves and Surplus
a.  Capital Resorves 31.3.2013 32012
Dp=mang Balance .18 .18
i+ Currenl Year Transies
(-} Whitten Back in Curmend Yoar
Closing Balance 0.18 .16

b. Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 93.57 G3.57
Add : Securiies promium credtod on Share msuo . -
Loss | Premium Ublized lor vadious reasons -
Premium on Redemption of Dabeniures -
For lssuing Bonus Shares = 5
Closang Balance 92.57 93.57
4524

€.  Other Reserves - Surplus on Amalgamation
Opening Balance 46.24
{+} Current Year Transier
(<) Wrviten Back in Current Year
Closing Baianca

45
d. her Reserves - General Reserve
Opening Balance 2261.00 1861.00
{4} Cuwrend Yoar Transies a80.00
(-} Writton Back in Current Yoar ;

Closing Balance 2621.00 2261.00

v. Surplus
Cipaning Balanco 10831.30 BE14.06
{+) Nt Prof [ (Met Loss) For the curmment year 2re.az 3918.63
{-) Praposed Dividend 67428 1033.70
{-} Dnndend Tax a7.60 167.69
i~} Transter io Resarves 360.00 400.00
Closing Balance 12618.54 10032130
Foreign Currency Transliation AResarve {17.85) 13.37
Total 15361.66 13345 64



CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

As. In lakhs
NOTE 3 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS 31.3.2013 313202
Secured
{a) Term loans
from banks 1514494 1306300
fram othar partes 470.37 388.76
1561531 13451.78
Unsecured r———y —
{8) Long term maturities of finance lease obligations .
Total Long Term Borrowings 15615.31 13451.76
Additianal Information ; _
Detata of Secursy for Secuned Loans

a) TermLoan avaled from Stale Bankol India s secuted by hypothecabon of Spec®ed movable Plant & Machingry iotsted

at Companys Fianl al Vellanpati Vilage including 1 Mo 1250 KW Wind Blectr Generalor localed al Vadavall Vilage,
Paladum Taluk, Commbaiony District. Furtwr the Term Loan from Stabe Bark of edia s securad by eguitabde mongape by

doposil of Hie deeds of 1,80 acresal land m Survey No ST TEE. located &1 Mamsngampattl Villags, Madural and koo
Feabid bk kocabed 0t Pant Mogar, Ruedapar, Uttrakhand,

b) Tem Loan bom Ko Vyssa Bank Lig. Is  secured Dy hypothecation of Speciic Plant and Machinery localed ol
Company's Plant 8l Vellanipams Vilage, Madural.

£} Term Loan fom Sundawam Finance Lid, |a secured by hypothecaton of Specc Piant & Machinary located &t Pant Mags,
Fudmpur, Unirekhand as well 83 Spaciic Plam and Machinery located st VeBanpam Villsge, Madurmi

dj Term Loan from DBS Bank = secured by hypolnecaton of Specific Pam & WMachinery located 51 Madural = well a5
spacifind snmovable propedbes localed ol Madorai,

4 The Loans of fomegn  subsaiany n tha form of overdralt and wwvosca dscounbing ane sacured by way of feod and foadeg
charges on ol proporiies ond assois, bolh presont and lulure DQeier witha oo of comion by he hokling comgany

NOTE 4 - Deferred Tax Liability | Assets
] Dartorrod Tax Labality

a) On Account of Depreciaton on Flsnd Assats 2363.84 1357.04
b) On account of timing Differances in Recognition of Expenditura - -
Translaion aojustrment 1.14 -
I} Deferred Tax Asaed
a) On account of wmeng Diflerences in Recognition of Expenditure B81.08 54 6O
Total 2203.90 1302 .35
NOTE 5 - Other Long Term Liabilities
{a) Trade Payables p e
@) Others 3237.00 1839.12
NOTE 6 - Long Torm Provis} Total 3237.09 1639.12
(a) Provision lor employee benefits
Leave Encashment (jumunded) 228.7T5 148.43

ib) Others -
) Provision for Taxation .

Total 226.75

e D - ——



CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As. In lakhs
31.3.201a 32
HOTE 7 - Shart Term Borrowings
Socured
{a) Loans ropayable on demand
krom banks 11861.50 22135.88
from offer parses . -
Unsecured
from olfior parthes . 100550
Total 11861.50 23145.38

Additional Information :

a.  Detmis ol Security for Secured Loans
Working Captal facities availed from Siate Bank of Incka are secured Dy a first charge by way ol
typothacation o Stock of Raw Matorals, Stores, Work In Progress, Finlshed goods and Book Dobta

NOTE 8 - Trade Payables
i} To Micro Small and Medium Enterprises L b

if) Oihers A5751.08 2TT24.54
Total I5751.05 27724 54

NOTE 9 - Other Current Liabllities

ia)] Current maturities of long-term detl 209218 35306 24
by Cumreni matuntes of finonce leass obhgations * 1.60
ic) Intorest accrued bul nol due on borrowings 41259 T8
idy Unpaid dwvidends 110.23 T9.99
) Onhars 219.30 14.70

Total 3ra0.37

HOTE 10 - Short Term Provisions
(a) Provision for employee benefits

Salary & Reimbursements 27T3.00 481.80

Contribution to PF 75.60 828

Leave encashmeani 23.18 16.31

Gratuity (Funded) 130.90 17115

(b} Others - Other Creditors 2083.48 242758
(e} Provisions

Taxation Less Advance Tax BaT.54 BE3.89

Dwidand 574.28 1033.70

Dwidend Tax §7.60 167.63

Total 3964.56 5221.40
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TVF FRICNANRA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

Rs. in lakhs
3.3.2013 31,3212
NOTE 13 - Long Term Loans and Advances
a,  Capital Advances
Secured, consxdered good
Unsecured. considered good Jazar 39956
Dowbtful .
Less: Provision lor doubthl advances :
33287 50 56
b. Security Deposits e
Soecured. considoned good . .
Unsacuned, considerad good BTO.0B 227.2%0
B870.08 227.20
€. Loans and advances lo relaled parties
Secured, considered Qood .
Unsecured, considered good - .
d. Other loans and advances
Unsacured, considered pood 436.74 41301
A36.T4 413.01
Total 1639.69 83877
NOTE 14 - Other Non Current Assets
MAT Crodst Enitlornent B16.18
Tortal B16.18 "
NOTE 15 - Inveniories As certifiod by Managing Director
i Raw Matoripls and componants ai cosl 17130.42 18244 44
b. Work-in-progress at cost 2009.67 34521
(o Finished goods al lower of cost and realisable valug 5395.01 B10T. T3
d. Sinck-in-irade at cost A7E0.98 AN51.68
8 Stores and spares af cost 685,90 520,29
I Loosa Tools .
g. DOthers . .
Grand Total 28982.07 13189.35



CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

NOTE 16 - Triasda Racolvables

Trade receivabiles cutstanding for a pedhod |ess than six months from
the ciale they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good

Trade recerables outstanding for a period exceading six maonths from
the dald they are dus 1o poyment

Unsecured. conskdered good

Unsecured, conssdered Doubtful

Less: Provision for Doubdiul

Total
NOTE 17 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
i Balances with banks
- In Unpaid Dividend Accounts
= In Warngin money
« In Deposits pocounts wilth Maturity of less than 3
month from the Balance Sheet date
in Deposits accounts with Maturity of more than 12
months iram the Balance Shaet date
- I Cusrant Accounts
b Chddjuids, dmfls on fand
c Cash on hand
e Dihorg
Total
NOTE 18 - Short Term Loans and Advances
a. Loans and advances o related parties
Unsecured, considersd good
b. Others
Unsecurad, conakdensd good
Total

31.3.2013

22414.36

Z2414.36

265.97

(34.54)
265.91
22680.27

110.43

854.66
3000.00

1542

4649.85

15.60
15.60

4456.90
4456.90

4472.50

Rs. In lakhs
313202

22120.82
2212082

428.51

42851
22549 33

g0.10
217.30

2362.38
336238
A362.38



TVF FRICNANRA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

Rs. In lakhs
31.3.2013 332
NOTE 19 - Revenue from operations
Sale of products 159608.76 150034 42
Sale of Traded Goods 17583.49 5003 .56
Ot operating revenues 516.50 T30.79
Less: Excme duty 12514.91 1072923
Totad 165193.84 14534854
NOTE 20 - Other Incomo
Indgragl Incomd - Cument Investmants 120,65 T6.15
Dwvidend Income - Long Term Investiments 25.00 25.00
Prolit on Sale of Fined Assats | Nel) 2547 .86 s
Profit on sale of Investmonts . .
Exchange Rate Gain & Loss 42838 42831
Dtha nOn-operaling Incomae 28,53 10.30
{net ol expenses directly attributable to such income) ——. ——
Tolad A151.42 539.85
NOTE 21 - Coat af Materials Consumad
Dpaning Stock 18244 .44 1TIBS 26
Add; Purchase (inciudes processing charges Rs. 2142 08 [akhs -
Presious year Fs. 1848.47 Lakhs) O6056.79 orTeO.7T
Totad 114301 .23 11496603
Less: Closing Stock 1713042 10244 44
Cost of Matorinks consumed aT170.81 BET21.50
NOTE 22 - (Increase) / Decrease In Slock
Opening Stock Finished goods & Traded goods 11259.41 fE34 30
Cpaning Stock Work in progress 34521 2027 48
Closing Stock of Finished goods & Traded Goods 915599 11258.41
Closing Stock of Work In progress 2009 .67 4521
{increase) / Decrease in Finished goods & Traded Goods 2103.42 [4425.02)
{increase] / Docrease in Work in progress 113554 (117.75)
Total [increase) ! Decroase in Swook 323896 (5542.77)



TV SRICAKRA LIMITED e

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

As. In lakhs
J31.3.2013 J1. 3202
HOTE 23 - Employes Benolil Expanses
(a) Salares and wages 10570.04 B1B2.85
o) Contributions to -
i Superannuation Fund 68.00 7139
(i Graluity hund confribulions 139.90 171.15
i)  Prowdent Fund 591.95 51397
€] Ramuneration 10 Whole Bmo direciors 118.688 28517
{di Staff welfare sxpenses 19147 954,13
Total 13079.94 1019466
NOTE 24 - Finance Costs
ISt enpdnss SBGT.2T 5300.97
Diner bofrowing cosis 355.18 407 24
Total B222.45 BFIT.21
NOTE 25 - Other Expenses
Consumpton ol Stores & Spanes 348,86 3404 T3
Powir & Fual 6421.13 501731
Repairs o building 387.37 206126
Repairs to machinery 446.52 3223
Ropaks Othars 50.23 15112
Insurance 220,43 237658
Rates & taxes 263.50 20214
Telaphone & Infemet Charges §95.74 8743
Travedling Expense 636.54 STT.44
Busingss Promaton 1394.20 1004 30
Fraight Out 426991 425881
Bad Debis wimen off 550 797
Provigion for doubtiul dobls 34,54 -
Assets condemned ZTaT 526
Romunisration to non Whols tma direcions
« Commission 12.04 58.40
Commaamnn & Dmcouni 5413.58 5055 68
Aant & Lease rontals 943.43 71388
Audit Fees 33.03 31.12
Donabon 2.39 275
Consultancy 1992.69 BOG. .96
Provision for dimuniton in mvestments 59.90 s
Warranty Claims 49158 2BA.TT
Dithor exponsag 222018 222 06
Total 25077 .57 2443311




TVY FRICHANRA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

26. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of Consolidation:

8) Basisol Preparation:

Tha Consclidated Enancial staloménts are propared in accordance with Accounting Standand 21 on
Comnsolidaied Financial Stalemants ssued by the Inshiute ol Chafered Accountants of India. The

consohdated financial statements of the subsidiary company in the UK and its subsidiaries have been
prepared according 1o accepted Accounting Standands in the UK.

b}  Principles of consclidation:

The consobdated fnancial stalements comprnis hé financial statements of TVE Srichakra Limited (the
Holding Company) and it Subsidiaries. The Financial Stalements of all the companios are propared

according to undorm accounting  polces. in accordance with genemnlly accepted accounting principles in
the couniries of incorporation. The effects of imiercompany ransactions are eliminated on consolidation

¢) Companies included in Consclidation:

Name of the Company Sharsholding
TVS Srichakra investmaents Limitad 100%
TVS Europe Distribution Limited, UK 56%
Universal Components UK Limited

[Subsidiary of TVS Euwrope Distribution Limsted, nhlﬂ'ml'nh;hHH-mIHUmwm

d} Accounting convention:

The financial stalements are prepared under the historical cost comention on an accrual bass and n
accordancs with apphcable accounting standands

8] Fized Assets :

Fimed assels are sialod of cost less CENVAT  Cost includes relalod dulies, laxes, freight, inslallation and
intergsl on spocific boirowing of an carliar year
f  Depreciation:

Al nmagts e deprecaied on Sirmight Line Method af mies prescribed i Schedule XIV of the
Comparses Act, 1958, in respect of the companies incorporated in indea. Depreciation is provided for at annual
rates on siraighi-Ene Dasis, by the foreign  subsidiary, 0 order 10 write off each assst over its estimated usehul
e

Depreciation is providad for on pro-rats basis on addiions and detetions made during the year. Assets costing
RAs. 5000/- and Delow are deprecaled infull inthe books of the companies incorporated in ndia

The carrying values ol intangible assets in the foreign subsidiary are reviewed for impairment in periods if
ciroumstances indicate that the carrying value may nol ba recoverabio



TV IRICHANRA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd |

k)

Irvestments:

All the imsasiments are long term investments. Diminwbon in respect of long term nvestmants are prondded o
when there is a permanent dimimution in the value of such mvesiments.

Investrants aro staled af cosl In respect of invesiments whare tha realizable valua s less Bwan cosd,
lowar value has bean adoptid.

Inventores:
Raw Matarials, and slores and spares are valued al cost ammived by applying Weighted Average Method
Cost consists of cosl of matenals, CESS. Duty & Fresght.

Work in progress is valued al cost applying Waeighled Average Method Cosl includoes cost of Matorals,
Labour and Other appropriale overheads.

Finishid gooos are vsluad at kower of cost and realizable value. Cost for this purpose comprisos malorals,
labour and other approgriale overheads and Excise Duty.

Traded Goods in a foreign subsidiary have been valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, after
ik g Oy aliowancs lor obaodetn and slow mowving items,

Cash flow statements;

Pursuant 1o the ksing agreemant with the Siock Exchanges, the Company has attached consobidatod
cash flow siatement to e consoldated Balance Sheel and the consoldated Statement of Prold and

Loss.

Revenue Recognition:

Income of the holding Company is derived from sale of mamnufaciured goods and includes Excise Duty
and is net of sales returns and Irade discounts. Domestic sales are recognized on the basis of sales nvoices

raised, Export salkes are recognized on the basis of dabe of bilts of iading. Export benefits, if any, are recognired
on posi shipmeni basis,

Turmnaver of the loreign subsidiary represents not invoiced sales of goods, excluding valus added tax recehed
and recofvable from the provision of goods 1o customserns during the penod. Tumaovar is recognized once goods
have beon despalched

interest income/expenses are recognized using the time proporion method based on the rates implicit in the
transaction, Dnidend income is recognized when tha right 1o receve dividend i established

Accounting for effects in foreign exchange rates:

Transactions are accounted al equevalent rupee values based on exchange rale prevailing on the date of
ransaction. The difference on account of fiuciuation at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction
and the date of realization is freated as ravenue.

Foreign curmency assets and babilibes ane rostated at the rates ruling at the year and and the difference
recognized in the Profil and Loss Account.



CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Comid.)

For the purpose of consolidation ol the accounts of the foreign subsidiary, the operations of the subsidiary have
been treated &3 non-integral oparations and the income and éxpanses have boeen transtated ot the average ol
rales provailing on he Beginning of the financial year and the date of the Balance Sheat. The assels and the
lhahiities have baen transtated at the cloging rate on the date of the Balance Shaet. The difference on transiaton
has been taken (o foreign exchange ranslation reserve and disclosed under Reserves and Surplus.

Ij Accounting for retirement benelila:

The Company provides lor gratuity. o defined banefit retirement plan, covering eligible employees. In
accordance with the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides a lumg-sum
paymaent 1o vested employdes al retiroment, death, incapacitation, or terminabion of amploymaent, of an amount
based on the employees’ salasy ond tenure of empioymeont.  Liabdities with regard (o the retirement plan ane
determined by an independent actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date, based upon which the
Company contributes all the ascertained Eabifities to the Company's gratuity fund

Leave encashment is provided for based on actuarial valuation.

Employess above a canain category are pamicipants in the company's superannuation fund, for which the
company makas annual contributons Dasad Lpon thalr salanes and lenure of employmant 1o a fund

mantained by the Lile Insurance Corporation of India

The Company makes s sialutory contribubtion to the Employees Prowsdent Fund o the Employess’
Provident Fund Organization of the Government of india,

The Compary makes contribution to the employeas' health schame lor those employees govemed by the ESI
Act,

The Company has adopled he revised accountng standard on employess benefil (AS-15, nivisad)
=sued by the Instituls of Chafared Accountants of india.

Roconciiafion of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined Daneit ODEgatoN:
{applicabla only to the holding company)

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Leave Encashment

Partculars 31.3.2013 a1.3.2012
Obligations al parod beginning 164.74 135
Sonic Cost 120,65 51.05
Intarasl Cost 9.98 863
Actuanal {gain) loss 42.09 3717
Bonalits pad (87.55) (67.32)
Amandmant in banafit plans -

Oobgations at e perkdad and 8.9 164 74
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HOTES ON ACCOUNTS ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conic.)

(Rs. In Lakhs)
GRATUITY
Particulars 31.3.2013 31.3.2012
Obligations at petiod baginning 882.64 TTR.11
Serace Cosl 158.67 167.04
Interest cost 79.23 B85.10
Actuarial (gam)oss (1.91) {2.18)
Benafits paid {44.37) (26.43)
Amandment in benelit plans " '
" Obligations at tha penad end 174.26 962 64
GRATUITY
Particulars 2132013 3132012
Change in plan assets .
Flan assets at the beginning of the yoar B11.49 701.10
Expecled return on the plan assels 65.99 58.19
Actuarial gainy (hloss) 26.10 0.13
Conlribulions 17115 TB.01
Benakts pad {44.37) {26.43)
Ditherance in Oponing Balance - 0.49
Plan assots al tho year end, lair value 1034.38 81148

Reconciliaton of the defined plan obligations and fair value of plan assets al the year end

Fair value of the plan assots at (he year beginning 174,28
Defined plan obligations al the year ond 103436
Assots(labiibes) recognized in the Prolit and Loss Account dunng the year|  139.90
ASSUMmpHons: Grastusty Leave Encashment
Interest Rale B25% B.S0%
DCescount Factor 8.25% B.50%
Estmated Return on Plan Asssils 8.00% -
Salary Increase 6.00% 5.00%
Aftirition Rate 500% 5 D0
Retremaent Age 58 4 B0 58 & 60
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nj

(Rs. In Lakhs)
GRATUITY
Graluity Cost: 3.3.20013 322
Service Cost 158.67 167.04
Interasi Cost 79.23 6510
Expacted roturm on plon assols (B9 94) (5815
Actuanal (gams) losses (28.01) 2.31)
Difference in Oponing Balance - {0.49)
Mot gratuity cost 139.90 17115

Investment detaids of plan assets:

The Comparry contributes the liability as per actuarial valuation to the Company's gratuity fund manager, ICICI
Prudential Life insurance Co. Lid

Borrowing Cost:

Inerasts on Domowings &re capitalized where ever (here & substantial period of ima batween the dale ol
borrowing and date on which the assels are pul 1o use

Segment reporting:

Tha Holdmg Company operates only In one segmant and e forekgn subsadiary in another, Disclosunes reguired
as per the provisionsof AS-1Tissued by the Institute of Chanered Accountanis of India are fumished.

Leases:

The Hodkding Compainy has iakonoartmn Plani and Equipments under oparating leaso.
Thelease pencd is for 10 years

The details of maturity profile of uture operating loase payments ane fumished below:

a Tha total of kiure minimum loase payrments snder non-canceliable operating lease for aach of the followng

pariods{Net): As inLaknhs
= Mo labis than ong yoar 1066 28
« Latar than ona yoar and not later than five years 390042
+ Latér than fve years 35351

b. Total of minimum sub-lsase payments expacted to be received under non-cancellable sub-leases &t the
Balance Sheat dale - Mot Applcable

¢ Lease payments recognised in the Statement ol Profit and Loss fof the penod undar the head reni Paid -
As. 5.93 Lakhs
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conid.)

P

Thes forsign subsbdiany has entéred inlo lsass ransactions which are in the nature of operating leases as per the
prowseons of the above standard ;

Fustune Minimism Loass payments Rs. In Lakins

Upto One year i

One to frve Years 366 48

Present vakme of Future Mawmum Lease payments "

Upto One year ;

One to fve Years 366 49

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per shane are dischosed in the Profil and Loss Account. There i no diluted aarniing per Shan as
there are no déutive polontial equity shares.

Accounting for taxes on incomeo:

The Company provides for curment taxes al current rates under apphicable tax laws, Disputed taxes are not
provided for, but disclosed in the notes on accounts.  The Company provides for deferred tax arising on
account of lempomany and reversibia timing differences on sccount of depreciation, employees' bonefits and
axpoenditunm which e allowed under the incoma Tax Act only on paymenl basis.

Interim financial reporting:

Ouartorly stand-alone results are published in accordance with the guidelnes ssued by the Socurities and
Exchange Board of India. The recognition and measuremant principles as lid down in the standard are
fofiowod with respect 10 such results. Quanerly stand-along financial results are also subjocted 10 a limited
hrnancisl review by the Auddors ms medquirind,

Intangible Assets:

Thay Comparyy captahzes non mtegral softward s intangible assets. The intangible assels are degrecialed at
the rales apphcable 1o compulers i Schedule XIV of the Compankes’ Act, 1856 under the Straight Line
Mathod

Tha foreign subsdiary had capilalizred goodwill thal arose on acquisition of business, as intangible asset and
amorizes the same over @ penod ol len years. However in order 1o comply with the requirements of the indian
Accounting Standards, which require goodwil 1o be visited for Impairment and not amortized, the Company has
not considared the amortization of goodwill lor the purposa of consolidated financial staternants.

The Company. in its consobdated stalemants, in the previous year had amorized goodwill, which s beng
reversad during the current yaar and shown as Excaptional tam intha Statement of Profit and Loss.
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n Impairment ol Assels:

The Company makes an assessment onthe Balance Sheat date o determing whether there s any indicabon
ol impairment in the camying amount of the Company's fixed assets. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amounis are esiimated and an impairment loss is recognided whenever the carrying amount of an

Sse] iCieds s recOverabie amount.

1)  Provisions, Contingent Liabililies and Contingen! Assels:

B  Provisons fof supenses ang made on esimated bass, based upon the jJudgment of the compary

b}  Contngent Linbdities are not provided for but desclosed in The notes on accounts.

Cl Thero ane no contiNQen Assets.

(As. In Lakhs)
Contingen! kabiities: 31.3.2013 31.3.2012
Balance at the begmnmg of the year 12648.47 4244 52
Additions /{ Deletions) during the year (7644.43) B4D3 85
Balance af the ond of iha yeur 5004 04 12648 47
Liabiities cisputed and not prowvded for Sales Tax & Excise 332013 31.32012
Badance al the boginning of (ha year 20419 19318
Addipons /{ Deletions] during the year 10.46 1163
Badance af the and of B yoo 215.25 204,70
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27 CONSOLIDATED NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

a)

B}

d}

L]

The Company value Raw malenals, Work in progress, Stores & Spares by applying Weighled Avesage price
Method. in respect of Raw materials, Cost consists of Material cosi, CESS, dulies & Freghl. In respect ol Work in

progress cost oonsist of Matonal cost, Labour and other appropnale overheads

The Company manuiaciures and sells Two whesler, Three wheeler, indusirial, Agricultural and Farm Tyres
03 woll 03 Knobs for direct apphcation

Tha main Raw Mataral in the production are as follows:

a) Natural Rubber b) Carbon Black c) Synthetic Rubberd) Buty! Rubber o) Chemical & Oils 1) Bead wire
g) Valves

Tha Company has decided thal, non cone activities will hanceforth be carmied out by Its wholly owned subaidiany
Company - TVS Srichalra Irvestments Limited. The foliowing transactions have beon entered into during the year.

I} Anadvance of Rs.20 Cr pald i an earfior yoar for acguinng a propety  has bean ransierred 1o a wholly
owned subsidiary Co., during the year

1) During the year, the Company has ransierred 5 lacs shares of As 10 each in ZF Electronics TVS ( India)
Private Limitad ., for 8 consideration of Re.12 Crores based upon an indeapendent Valuation report. This
e resulted noa Proft on sale of imesimant of B5.11.47 Crores

iy A sum of As 33.53 Crores s outstanding from this whally owned subsidiary at the end of the accounting

WE

Rs. in lakhs
CIF Valua of miports 31.3.2013 31.3.2012
1 Raw Matenals 28751.90 3564417
2 Spans 19.02 .
3 Capital Goods 516.66 14079
4 Traded Goods .
5§ Software & -
Consumpéion ol impored and indigenous
i FmataHals Rng componsnis - %
1 Imporiod 35.11 33361.08 28.18 SAR3L F5
2 Inghginius 64.89 61658.40 73 82 70038 93
Consumpition of imporied and
indigenous Stores and Spares % %
ol - . 020 9.80
2 Indigenous 100.00 J646.86 89.71 33594 .99
Earnings in foreign exchange
1  FQOB. vakme of goods exporisd 19694.96 TG40
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h

]

n}

Expenditure incumed in Foreign Curmency on

1 Consultancy
2 inloresi
3  Other Matters

Ramunaration 10 Managing Director :

1 Salares & Alowances
Cormminaion
Cantribution to Provident & Other Funds

2 Remunseration to Executive Vice Chairman:
Commission

1. Interest Capiaksad
Z. Interest paid includes inderest on Fixed Loans

Tax deducted wt Source from Inieresi

Stores and Spares consumed inciudes consumpton
towards repairs and manienance of Plant & Machinery

Deetnits of the Audd Fees Audit leas
Payments o auditors

a. for audk fees

b. for taxation matters,

€. for Certificabon

d. lor Incoma Tax

&, for reimbursemont of exponses

31.3.2013

444,685
1004.97
.99

T70.70
24.09
1134
24.09

140.00
1184.77

T1.98

1228.30

T.00

1.25
0.10

Rs. in lakha
1.3 32

47560
21024
131.76

55 58
11679
8.08

116.79

145,00
164514

T 40

1956.00

7.00
045
1.00
0.10

Profit on sale of Assots ncluded under the head other ncome inciudes sale of machineries the book value ol
which s Rs. 2883 lacs, sold lor a considerabon ol RS, 5530 lacs based on indepandent valuation oblained.
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o)

()

Details of Research and Developmsant Expenditure
(1 Captal Expenditung:

a} Plant & Machingry

b) Ehectrical Installptions

c] Vehicles

d) Computers

¢} Fumifure

i Buldings

g} Capatal work in progress (P & M)

Revanue Expandilurg.

a8 HAaw Matenals consumed
b} Stores & Spares consumed
¢} Salanes, Wages, Bonus and Allowances

d) Freigh

Rent including lease rentals
fi  Rates & Theos
gl Insuance

iy Ropars & Mamisnancs

k) Othem

Total Resaarch and Development expanditure

31.3.2013

1.85
4.48
0.73

5.20

Toital 241.68

|

163.98
18.58

19.26
T.94
1241
0.78
98.24
103.66

152.91

Tatal 1186.01

1427.69

As. in lakhs
3.32012

47.10

25114

8908
5.86
0.05
1.3
124.45
T2

14239

|

111023
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P

Rs. in lakhs
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
Contingenl Liabilities nol provided for:
#) Esbmated amaount ol contracts reemaining
10 DO ExaCuted On CaPal acoount 1057.058 4288
bl On Letters ol Credt oponed by Company's Bankers 3801.39 915253
¢} Excase Duty under Despute 202.13 168.67
d) Sabes Tax under Despute 13.12 16.12
2) Customs cuty on goods yng at Bonded Warehouss 145.60 S5To 62

Informaiion pursuant o clause 4 (ix) (b) of the Companies (Audilor's Report] Order, 2003 in respect ol
dues disputed, nol deposiled, panding with various authorities:

As. in lakhs
Forum where dispute 5 Pending Excise Duty Sales Tax
High Count i
Customs. Exciss and Service Tix Appollaia Tribunal 158.00
Commissioner of Central Excse 283
Dy Commessioner of Cantral Exso 1745
Assistant Commusssones of Central Excise 23.85
Appellate Tribunal - o
Asgesiang Offcar - 1zm
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1 DISCLOSURE ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (AS 18
Description of relationship and Names of related parties:

1 Associates TV Sundram lyengar & Sons Limited
TVS Tedecom Components Limited
£ZF Electronics TVS (india) P Lid
Van Leeuwen Tyres & Whaals B.V, Holland

2 Koy Managoment Personngl Sn R Naresh, Executive Vice Chalrman
Ms Shobhana Ramachandhran, Managing Direclor

3 Enterprise with Comimon Koy Managemant Sundaram Indusiries Limted

Pargonnel
As. in lakhs
Sl Key Enterprise with
No. Particulars Associates Managemont Commaon Key
Personnel Management Personnal
A Transactions lor tha yoar
ended 31.3.2013
103 48 - 338.48
1 Purchases (168.24) " 74.07)
888603 s 221.14
2 Sales (B34 _25) > {90.32)
| Inlares) Paid (1 -lﬁ.:ﬂ"i
] intarest Recadspd . 15.60
-] Senvices rendered 402 51 0.948
(583,77 21.20)
L] Services recarmad i01.91 133 9 8158
(68.62) (301.15) {1.90)
T Loans Accepled / Repad .
(1500, 00)
a Loans Gen . i
- Loans Repaid =
10 Provision for damunulon n mvestma nts 60.90 *
11 Sale of irvvesimenis
i2 AdVancn
B Outstanding as on 31.3.2013
1 |  Recowvabke 800,58 g
(B45.57) (58.20)
2 Payable . 4818
(233.58)

Figures |n Brackeds are hal of prévious s
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Rs. in lakhs
31.2.2013 313202
B) Trade Payables and Shorl Torm Provisions include:
a) Acceptances 13863.21 10482 07
b) Due to Managing Duecior 24.09 11679
¢] Dus o Executive Vice Chairman 24.09 116.79
dj Dwe to Mon-whola time Ciraclons 12.04 58.40
] Mo amount = due as on 3151 March, 2013 lor credit [o Invesior Education and Prolection Fund
k) Details of Eamings Per Share
Profit afor tax As. In Lakhs Zriaaz 3aEl
Mo. of pguity sharnes MNos TESTOS0 TESTOS0
Face valus of share Rs 10,00 10.00
Basic Earnings por share RAs 358,51 5118

W) Terms of regayment of Term Loan

1. Torm loan from SBI V is repayable in 66 monthly instaliments commencang from Oclober 2010 (with a
iAo of B o)

2 Term loan from KVB i repayable in 72 monthly instaliments commencing from Octobar 2011
3. HPLoan from Sundaram Finance Lid , is repayable in monthly instaliments commencing from January 2010

4, ECB Loan fom DBS Boani is repayable in 20 Cuanerly Instalment ot the end of 27 months from the 151
drawdown (with a moralorium of 2 years)

5 Term loan from DBS Bank is repayable in 16 quanterdy nstafiments &t the end of 15 months from the 15t
drawdonwn

B Tarm Loan obtained by loreign subsldiary & epayabls in bisnnual instalmants commancing MNovember 2013
1l Movembaer 2018

w) An amouni of Rs. 7.50 per share has been approved by the Board of Directors lowards dividond.

SHOBHAMNA RAMACHANDHRAN As per our report attached R NARESH
Maraging Diachor For SUNDARAM & SRINIVASAN Exacutive Vice Chairman
Chartered Accourtants
Firm Registration No, 004207 5
K S NARAYANASWAMY P SAINIVASAN
Place :Chennail Partner Secrpdary
Date : 22.52013 Membarship No. 8583



DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES AS REQUIRED BY THE
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT UNDER SECTION 212{8) OF THE COMPAMIES Act, 1956

Particulars Name of subsidiares
TVS Srichakra Investments Lid TVS Europe Distribution Lid
Yoar onded 3822013

Raoporting Curmency INR in Lakhs INA In Lakhs
a) Capital 205.00 3053.39
b) Reserves (52.91) 73505
c) Total Azseats 351039 15304 16
d} Total Liabifities 3510.39 15305, 16
&) Details of Investmeant

f) Tumower including other Income 156 17540.08
g} Profit before Taxabon (43.04) 112567
) Proviseon lor Taabon 482 21135
i) Profit aftdr Taxaten (48.87) 91432
) Proposed Dividend a

The Financial Staterments of Subskiiaries whose reporting currency are othsr than INR are converted info indian

Rupees on the following basis

Particulars

For assetis and Linbifies &i the
Cloaing Exchange Hate

For Profit and Loas acoouni
at the Dally Average rate

GEP o INR

B2.32

B1.54

Note : The above details are extracted from the Audited Annual Accounts of the respective Companies




TVS SRICHAKRA LIMITED
Riagd, Ofcs : TVS Bulldeg, T-8, Weat Vel Sirest. Madura 625 001

ATTENDANCE SLIP
FLEASE COMPLETE TheS ATTEMDANCE SLIP BND HAND 1T OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HadL
Marre af B attorndng
T
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BP g Chond 1d *
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Macurme 525 0032 Ay i ihane regreennen addivas
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wongid s 10 deond dopdcalion, Lindly sdeiss o areable om i el
only ore copy s el Pesig Ui o enenid aaslage

Sagrabure of e £ geory

* Applicabie by wwestors habbing shaies m slctrenic form
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TVS TYRES

ROADSENSE

TVS Srichakra Limited
Tamil Nadu: Vellaripalli, Melur Taluk, Madurai - 625 112. Tal: 0452 - 2420461

Uttarakhand: Integrated Industrial Estate, Sidcul, Pant Nagar, Rudrapur Tehsil,
Kicha Dist. Uttarakhand - 263 153. Tel: 05844 - 250374





